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Item 2. Acquisition or Disposition of Assets
On August 8, 2002, The Manitowoc Company, Inc. completed the acquisition of Grove Investors, Inc. ("Grove"), a leading provider of
mobile hydraulic cranes, truck-mounted cranes, and aerial work platforms for the global market. The final purchase price was $271 million. Of
that amount, the company issued approximately 2.2 million shares of its common stock to the Grove shareholders valued in the transaction at
$71.6 million, and is refinancing or assuming $199.1 million of Grove's debt. The company obtained cash for the debt retirement through a
combination of its existing working capital revolver and a private offering of senior subordinated notes due 2012. The purchase price paid by
Manitowoc was determined on the basis of arm's length negotiations between the parties. There is no material relationship between Grove and
Manitowoc or any of its affiliates, directors or officers or any of their associates.
Grove is a leading provider of mobile hydraulic cranes, truck-mounted cranes, and aerial work platforms for the global market. Manitowoc
intends to operate the business of Grove at its present locations and to conduct the business of Grove in substantially the same manner as it had

been conducted prior to the acquisition.

Item 7. Financial Statements and Exhibits
(a)

Financial Statements of Business Acquired.

The financial statements of Grove Investors, Inc. and Subsidiaries are included as follows:
(i)

Independent Auditors' Report

(ii)

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001

(iii)

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and
September 29, 2001

(iv)

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended October 2, 1999,
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001

(v)

Consolidated Statements of Predecessor Equity (Deficit) for the years ended October 2, 1999,
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001

(vi)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended October 29, 1999, September 30, 2000
and September 29, 2001

(vii)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(viii)

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 29, 2001 and March 30, 2002

(ix)

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended
March 31, 2001 and March 30, 2002

(x)

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three and six
months ended March 31, 2001 and March 30, 2002

(xi)

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended March 31,
2001 and March 30, 2002
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(b)

(c)

Pro Forma Financial Information.
(i)

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Earnings for the year ended December 31,
2001

(ii)

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Earnings

(iii)

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Earnings for the three months ended
March 31, 2002

(iv)

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Earnings

(v)

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2002

(vi)

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

Exhibits.
See the Exhibit Index following the Signature page of this report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

3
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors of

Grove Investors, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Grove Investors, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 29, 2001 and the
consolidated balance sheet of SGPA, Inc. (formerly Grove Investors LLC) and subsidiaries (the "Predecessor"), as of September 30, 2000 and
the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), predecessor equity (deficit) and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended September 29, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the companies'
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Grove
Investors, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 29, 2001 and the financial position of the Predecessor as of September 30, 2000, and the results
of the Predecessor's operations and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 29, 2001, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
As described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on September 25, 2001 the Predecessor consummated a reorganization plan
(the "Plan") which had been confirmed by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of Pennsylvania. The Plan resulted in a
change in ownership of the Predecessor and, accordingly, effective September 29, 2001 Grove Investors, Inc. accounted for the change in
ownership through "fresh-start" reporting. As a result, the consolidated information prior to September 29, 2001 is presented on a different cost
basis than that as of September 29, 2001 and, therefore, is not comparable.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
December 12, 2001
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001
(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$17,933
1,688
132,305
6,801
176,965
10,859
346,551
170,020

$13,551
388
132,201
12,668
168,451
4,601
331,860
138,110

-202,602
16,964
$736,137

36,576
-11,292
$517,838

$37,000

$15,000

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash restricted as to its use (note 5)
Trade receivables, net (note 5)
Notes receivable (note 5)
Inventories (note 6)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net (note 7)
Reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to identifiable asset
(note 8)
Goodwill, net (note 8)
Other assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity/Predecessor Deficit
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt (notes 2 and 11)

Short-term borrowings (note 9)
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (note 10)
Total current liabilities
Deferred revenue (note 4)
Long-term debt (notes 2 and 11)
Other liabilities (note 12)
Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity/predecessor deficit (note 2):
Preferred stock, par value $1 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized, none
issued or outstanding
Common stock, par value $1 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized,
5,000,000 shares issued and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Invested capital
Notes receivable from members
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders' equity/predecssor deficit
Commitments and contingencies (notes 2, 16, 17 and 18)

20,967
77,637
83,051
218,655
37,170
530,217
88,843
874,885

14,801
64,617
68,402
162,820
21,201
160,800
78,017
422,838

--

--

--75,000
(1,538)
(188,292)
(23,918)
(138,748)

5,000
90,000
----95,000

$736,137

$517,838

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001
(in thousands)

Predecessor

Net sales
Cost of goods sold (note 6)
Gross profit
Selling, engineering, general and administrative expenses
Amortization of goodwill
Restructuring charges (note 13)
Reorganization costs (note 2)
Goodwill impairment charge (note 8)
Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense, net (note 11)
Other expense, net
Loss before income taxes, extraordinary gain and
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle
Income taxes (note 15)
Net loss before extraordinary gain and cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle
Extraordinary gain on discharge of debt and accrued
interest (note 2)

1999

2000

2001

$788,893
641,111
147,782
124,704
6,880
---16,198
(50,112)
(200)

$845,950
721,068
124,882
107,864
7,029
8,757
-53,351
(52,119)
(59,911)
(996)

$717,584
616,235
101,349
95,927
5,537
4,963
14,507
-(19,585)
(42,080)
(4,052)

(34,114)
5,535

(113,026)
6,255

(65,717)
260

(39,649)

(119,281)

(65,977)

--

--

334,432

Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (note 4)
Net income (loss)

(39,649)
--

(119,281)
302

268,455
--

$(39,649)

$(118,979)

$268,455

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001
(in thousands)

Predecessor

Net income (loss)
Change in minimum pension liability
Unrealized net income (loss) on cash flow hedges of
forecasted foreign currency transactions
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment
Comprehensive income (loss)

1999

2000

2001

$(39,649)
(5,909)

$(118,979)
7,708

$268,455
(9,629)

-(9,038)
$(54,596)

(992)
(20,969)
$(133,232)

992
2,881
$262,699

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Predecessor Equity (Deficit)
For the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001
(in thousands)

Invested
capital

Notes
receivable
from
members

Retained
earnings
(accumulated
deficit)

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)

Total
Predecessor
equity
(deficit)

Balance, October 3, 1998
Advances to members
Accrued interest on member notes
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss

$75,000
-----

$(2,783)
(888)
(261)
---

$(29,664)
--(39,649)
--

$5,282
---(14,947)

$47,835
(888)
(261)
(39,649)
(14,947)

Balance, October 2, 1999
Amounts received from members
Amounts advanced to members
Accrued interest on member notes
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss

75,000
------

(3,932)
2,847
(343)
(110)
---

(69,313)
---(118,979)
--

(9,665)
----(14,253)

(7,910)
2,847
(343)
(110)
(118,979)
(14,253)

Balance, September 30, 2000
Accrued interest on member notes
Repayment of notes
Reclass to other assets
Net income
Other comprehensive loss

75,000
------

(1,538)
(187)
1,216
509
---

(188,292)
---268,455
--

(23,918)
----(5,756)

(138,748)
(187)
1,216
509
268,455
(5,756)

$75,000

$--

$80,163

$(29,674)

$125,489

Balance, September 29, 2001 prior to
"fresh-start" adjustments (note 2)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended October 29, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001
(in thousands)

Predecessor

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile to net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Extraordinary gain on discharge of debt and accrued
interest
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of equipment held for rent
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Goodwill impairment charge
Accretion of interest on senior discount debenture
Interest on senior debentures
(Gain) loss on sales of property, plant and equipment
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables, net
Notes receivable

1999

2000

2001

$(39,649)

$(118,979)

$268,455

-18,537
14,921
2,294
-6,357
7,313
(255)
2,680

-20,209
15,998
2,349
53,351
6,998
8,675
31
(304)

(334,432)
20,494
9,382
1,230
-4,263
5,692
165
--

(16,951)
462

(3,383)
(1,457)

2,399
(5,839)

Inventories
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other assets and liabilities, net
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

6,907
(14,848)
12,971
739

1,593
8,749
(3,586)
(9,756)

(3,342)
(3,899)
22,479
(12,953)

(9,405)
(23,793)

(8,775)
(6,876)

(7,072)
(4,643)

10,500
3,408
(19,290)

--(15,651)

-2,291
(9,424)

4,139
10,000
(12,000)
(937)
1,202

1,801
25,000
(2,000)
2,182
26,983

(6,510)
24,356
(1,000)
1,005
17,851

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

(110)

(473)

144

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

(17,459)
34,289

1,103
16,830

(4,382)
17,933

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$16,830

$17,933

$13,551

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Investment in equipment held for rent
Post-closing adjustment related to acquisition of businesses
from Hanson, PLC
Other investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from (repayments of) short-term borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Other financing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001
(1) Description of Business
Grove Investors, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company") are primarily engaged in the design, production, sale, and after-sale support of
mobile hydraulic cranes, aerial work platforms and truck-mounted cranes. The Company's domestic manufacturing plants and related facilities
are located in Shady Grove, Pennsylvania and Waverly, Nebraska. The Company's foreign facilities are located in the United Kingdom,
Germany and France. The majority of the Company's sales are to independent distributors, rental companies, and end users which serve the
heavy industrial and construction industries in the United States and Europe.
(2) Plan of Reorganization and Basis of Presentation
From its inception in 1998 through December 31, 2000, Grove Investors LLC was a limited liability company which owned all the
member's interest of Grove Holdings LLC. Grove Holdings LLC was a single member limited liability company which owned all of the
member's interests of Grove Worldwide LLC. Effective January 1, 2001, Grove Investors LLC ("Grove Investors") was converted from a
limited liability company to a C-corporation. (See note 14)
Prior to filing its petition for protection under United States Bankruptcy Code, Grove Investors changed its name to SGPA, Inc. ("SGPA" or the
"Predecessor"). On May 7, 2001, SGPA filed a pre-negotiated Plan of Reorganization (the "Plan") for SGPA and each of its domestic
subsidiaries pursuant to Chapter 11 of United States Bankruptcy Code with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of
Pennsylvania (the "Bankruptcy Court"). The Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan on September 14, 2001 and the Plan was consummated on
September 25, 2001. For reporting purposes, the inception date for the reorganized company was as of the close of business on September 29,
2001.
In connection with the Plan, Grove Investors, Inc. was formed under the laws of the State of Delaware, and in turn formed a wholly owned
subsidiary, Grove Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings"), which in turn formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Grove Worldwide, Inc. ("Worldwide"). On
September 25, 2001, Worldwide acquired SGPA, and Grove Holding LLC and Grove Worldwide LLC were merged into Worldwide. The
Company executed, among other things, the following elements of the Plan:

* Holders of amounts outstanding under the Predecessor's bank credit facility of approximately $224,000, including accrued interest, were
issued (i) $125,000 in senior secured notes, (ii) debentures, with a face value of $45,000 and an estimated fair value of $35,800, and (iii) four
million shares of the Company's common stock.
* Holders of approximately $236,000 of the Predecessor's 9.25% senior subordinated notes, including accrued interest, were issued
(i) one million shares of the Company's common stock, (ii) Series A warrants with a seven-year term giving the holder the right to acquire an
aggregate of 277,778 shares of common stock at an exercise price of approximately $19.20 per share and (iii) Series B warrants with a sevenyear term giving the holder the right to acquire an aggregate of 277,778 shares of common stock at $24.20 per share.
* Holders of approximately $70,000 of the Predecessor's 11.625% senior discount debentures, including accrued interest, approximately
$73,000 of 14.5% senior debentures, including accrued interest, and the equity holders of the Predecessor did not receive any consideration
under the Plan and their claims were discharged.
*

Holders of all pre-petition unsecured trade obligations of the Predecessor were paid in full.

The estimated fair value of the Series A and Series B warrants were approximately $2,000 and $1,800, respectively. Such amounts have
been included in additional paid-in capital in the consolidated balance sheet as of September 29, 2001.
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In connection with the Bankruptcy filing, the Predecessor's bank group provided a $35 million Debtor-in-Possession facility for use by the
Predecessor during Bankruptcy which was converted into a Revolving Credit Facility upon emergence from reorganization. (See note 11).
The Plan contemplates that 250,000 shares of common stock which were distributed to holders of the Predecessor's bank credit facility will
be given to management. In addition, the Company will establish a stock option plan providing for the issuance of up to 250,000 options to
management to purchase the Company's common stock at the reorganization date fair market value.
The reorganization value of the Company of approximately $286 million, ratified in the bankruptcy proceeding, was determined with the
assistance of a financial advisor. The advisor (i) reviewed certain historical financial information for recent years and interim periods;
(ii) reviewed certain internal financial and operating data, including five-year financial projections, prepared and provided by management;
(iii) met with certain members of senior management to discuss the Company's operations and future prospects; (iv) reviewed publicly
available financial data and considered the market value of public companies which the financial advisor deemed generally comparable to the
operating business of the Company; (v) considered certain economic and industry information relevant to the operating businesses; and
(vi) conducted such other studies, analyses, inquiries, and investigations as they deemed appropriate. Based upon the foregoing, the financial
advisor developed a range of values for the Company. In addition to relying on management's projections, the reorganization valuation analysis
made a number of assumptions including, but not limited to, a successful and timely reorganization of the Company's capital structure.
The consolidated financial statements following the reorganization reflect accounting principles set forth in the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position ("SOP") 90-7, Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy
Code . This statement provides guidance for financial reporting by entities that have filed voluntary petitions for relief under and have
reorganized in accordance with the United States Bankruptcy Code. As such, the Company has adopted "fresh-start" reporting as of
September 29, 2001, in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet because holders of the equity interest in SGPA
immediately before filing and confirmation of the Plan hold less then 50% of the equity interest in Investors and because SGPA's
reorganization value is less than its post-petition liabilities and allowed claims. SGPA's emergence from Chapter 11 proceedings resulted in a
new reporting entity with no retained earnings or accumulated deficit as of September 29, 2001. As discussed further in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Company were restated as of September 29, 2001, in accordance with SOP
90-7. Thus, the Company's consolidated financial statements for periods prior to September 29, 2001 are not comparable to consolidated
financial statements as of or subsequent to September 29, 2001. The consolidated statement of operations, comprehensive income (loss),
predecessor equity (deficit), and cash flows reflect results of the Predecessor through September 29, 2001, including the impact of the Plan.
The difference between the Company's reorganization value and the fair value of the Company's assets and liabilities resulted in the
recording of a reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to identifiable assets of $36,576 as of September 29, 2001.
The Predecessor incurred certain costs related to the Plan, which are shown as Reorganization Costs in the consolidated statement of
operations. The components of Reorganization Costs for the year ended September 29, 2001 are as follows:
Legal fees
Professional fees and advisory services
Interest income on cash collateral
Total reorganization costs

$4,297
10,963
(753)
$14,507

The consolidated statement of operations for the year ended September 29, 2001 reflects an extraordinary gain from the discharge of debt and

accrued interest. Components of the extraordinary gain are as follows:
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Cancellation of borrowings under bank credit facility
Cancellation of senior subordinated debentures
Cancellation of senior discount debentures
Cancellation of senior debentures
Deferred financing costs
Issuance of notes under senior credit facility
Issuance of debentures
Issuance of common stock and warrants

$224,515
235,695
70,155
72,599
(12,732)
(125,000)
(35,800)
(95,000)

Net extraordinary gain

$334,432

The consolidated balance sheet prepared as of September 29, 2001, discussed below, illustrates the effect of the Plan and the impact of
implementing "fresh-start" reporting. The adjustments present the (i) Company's reorganized capital structure, including its new credit
agreement and debentures; (ii) effect of canceling the senior subordinated debentures, senior discount debentures and senior debentures and the
related accrued interest and deferred financing costs; (iii) elimination of the accumulated deficit and comprehensive loss; (iv) write-up of
inventory to approximate fair market value; (v) adjustment of the pension and post-retirement benefit liabilities to reflect fair market value; and
(vi) certain other adjustments to adopt SOP 90-7.
The Company's allocation of the reorganization value is preliminary. The Company is in the process of obtaining appraisals of certain of its
tangible and intangible assets. Accordingly, adjustments may be necessary to property, plant, and equipment, other assets, deferred taxes and
reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to identifiable assets once such appraisals are complete.
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The effects of the Plan on the Company's consolidated balance sheet, including debt extinguishments, refinancing and fresh-start
adjustments are as follows:
Predecessor
September 29,
2001

Effect of
Plan of
Reorganization

Fresh
Start
Adjustments

Company
September 29,
2001

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash restricted as to its use
Trade receivables, net
Notes recievable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill/reorganization value in excess
of amounts allocated to identifiable
assets
Other assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:

$13,551
388
132,201
12,668
157,416

$------

$----11,035

$13,551
388
132,201
12,668
168,451

4,601
320,825
138,110

----

-11,035
--

4,601
331,860
138,110

200,761
21,479

-(12,223)

(164,185)
2,036

36,576
11,292

$681,175

$(12,223)

$(151,114)

$517,838

Current maturities of long-term debt
Short-term borrowings
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities

$15,000
14,801
64,617

$----

$----

$15,000
14,801
64,617

68,402

--

--

68,402

Total current liabilties
Pre-petition debt
Deferred revenue
Long-term debt
Other liabilties

162,820
602,964
21,201
-103,642

-(602,964)
-160,800
--

----(25,625)

162,820
-21,201
160,800
78,017

Total liabilities

890,627

(442,164)

(25,625)

422,838

--75,000
(509)
(254,269)

5,000
90,000
-509
334,432

--(75,000)
-(80,163)

5,000
90,000
----

(29,674)

--

29,674

--

(209,452)

429,941

(125,489)

95,000

$681,175

$(12,223)

$(151,114)

$517,838

Stockholders' equity:
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Invested capital
Notes receivable from members
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total stockholders' equity
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(3) Acquisition
On April 29, 1998, the Predecessor acquired from Hanson PLC ("Hanson") and certain of its subsidiaries, substantially all of the assets of
Hanson's U.S. mobile hydraulic crane and aerial work platform operations, the capital stock of Hanson's U.S. truck-mounted crane operation
and the capital stock of Hanson's British, French, German, and Australian crane and aerial work platform subsidiaries. The purchase price was
subject to a post-closing adjustment for which the Company received $10,500 in November 1998. The Acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase.
(4) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company's fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to September 30.
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company defines cash equivalents as highly liquid investments with initial maturities of three months or less.
(c) Trade Receivables and Notes Receivable
Trade receivables are net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,057 as of September 30, 2000. Trade receivables are reported at
estimated fair value at September 29, 2001.
Notes receivable generally relate to sales of new equipment to North American customers on terms of up to one year. Payment of interest
and principal are due at the maturity of the note unless the dealer sells the equipment prior to maturity in which case the notes must be repaid
immediately along with any interest accrued thereon.
(d) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, as determined primarily under the first-in, first-out method. Inventories are reported at
estimated fair value at September 29, 2001.

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. See note 2 to the consolidated financial statements with respect to adoption of "fresh-start"
reporting pursuant to SOP 90-7 at September 29, 2001.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred, while expenditures having the effect of extending the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Depreciation is computed primarily using the straight-line method. The useful lives by asset category are as follows:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Equipment held for rent
Furniture and fixtures

3-20 years
10-30 years
3-12 years
Lease term
3-10 years
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(f) Goodwill and Reorganization Value in Excess of Amounts Allocated to Identifiable Assets
Predecessor goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in 1998. Amortization expense is
recorded on the straight-line method over 40 years. The Predecessor assessed the recovery of goodwill by determining whether amortization of
the goodwill over its remaining life could be recovered through undiscounted cash flows of the acquired operations. Goodwill impairment, if
any, was measured by determining the amount by which the carrying value of the goodwill exceeded its fair value based upon discounting of
future cash flows. See note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for information related to the adjustment of goodwill and establishment of
the reorganization value in excess of amount allocated to identifiable assets in connection with adoption of "fresh-start" reporting pursuant to
SOP 90-7 at September 29, 2001.
The reorganization value of the Company has been allocated to the Company's assets in conformity with the purchase method of accounting
specified by Accounting Principle Board Opinion 16 and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, Business
Combinations . Because a portion of the reorganization value cannot be attributed to a specific tangible or identified intangible assets of the
Company, this amount has been reported as "reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to identifiable assets." This intangible asset
will not be amortized, but will be tested annually for impairment in accordance with SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets .
(g) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to
be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of assets exceed the fair value of the
assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or net realizable value.
(h) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is generally recognized as title transfers, usually as products are shipped to customers. However, for certain transactions, the
Company provides guarantees of the residual value of the equipment to third party leasing companies. Such guarantees generally take the form
of end-of-term residual value guarantees or reducing residual value guarantees that decline with the passage of time. The Company records
these transactions in accordance with the lease principles established by SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases . If the transaction qualifies as an
operating lease, the Company records deferred revenue for the amount of the net proceeds received upon the equipment's initial transfer to the
customer. The liability is then subsequently reduced on a pro rata basis over the period to the first exercise date of the guarantee, to the amount
of the guaranteed residual value at that date, with corresponding recognition of revenue in the Company's statement of operations. Any further
reduction in the guaranteed residual value resulting from the purchaser's decision to continue to use the equipment is recognized in a similar
manner. Depreciation of equipment held for rent is recognized in a similar manner over the term of the lease agreement. As of September 30,
2000 and September 29, 2001, the amount of deferred revenue relating to transactions involving residual value guarantees, which is classified
as deferred revenue or accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, was $49,739 and $30,202, respectively.
(i) Product Warranty
Product warranty expense is provided for estimated normal warranty costs at the time of sale. Additional warranty expense is provided for
specific performance issues when identified. Specific performance issues relate to situations in which the Company issues a part replacement
notice for models that are experiencing a particular problem.
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(j) Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements of subsidiaries located outside the United States are measured using the local currency as the functional currency.
Assets, including goodwill, and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. The resulting translation gains and
losses are included as a separate component of other comprehensive income (loss) in Predecessor deficit. Income and expense items are
translated at average monthly rates of exchange. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions of these subsidiaries are included in net
income (loss). Aggregate gains (losses) on foreign currency transactions were not material for the year ended October 2, 1999. For the years
ended September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, aggregate losses on foreign currency transactions were $2,256 and $4,626, respectively.
(k) Research and Development
Research and development expenditures are charged to operations as incurred. Research and development costs were $12,371, $10,749 and
$8,717 for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, respectively, and are included as part of selling,
engineering, general and administrative expenses.
(l) Advertising
All costs associated with advertising and promoting products are expensed when incurred. Advertising expenses were $2,289, $2,893 and
$3,591 for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, respectively.
(m) Stock-Based Compensation
The Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees , and related
interpretations in accounting for its stock-based employee compensation arrangements and will provide the disclosures required by SFAS
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation .
(n) Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
(o) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair value of a financial instrument represents the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than a forced sale or liquidation. Significant differences can arise between the fair value and carrying amount of financial
instruments that are recognized at historical cost amounts. However, as a result of the Company's "fresh-start" reporting, all financial
instruments included in the September 29, 2001 consolidated balance sheet are at estimated fair market value.
The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair value for financial instruments:
Cash, trade receivables, notes receivable, trade accounts payable and short-term borrowings : The amounts reported in the consolidated
balance sheets approximate fair value.
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Foreign currency contracts: The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using prices established by financial institutions for
comparable instruments. (See note 17)
Long-term debt: For bank borrowings, the amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet approximates fair value. The fair value of the
debentures is based on values determined with the assistance of the Company's financial advisor in determining the reorganization value. (See
notes 2 and 11)
(p) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
During fiscal 2000, the Predecessor adopted SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and SFAS
No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities (an amendment to SFAS No. 133) , respectively. These
statements establish accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. They require that an entity
recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities measured at fair value. The impact of adoption of SFAS No. 133 of $302 is presented as
the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the consolidated statement of operations in fiscal 2000. There was no impact from
the adoption of SFAS No. 138.
All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. On the date the derivative contract is entered into, the Company
designates the derivative as either a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment ("fair-

value" hedge), a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability
("cash-flow" hedge), a foreign-currency fair-value or cash-flow hedge ("foreign-currency" hedge), or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation. The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as fair-value,
cash-flow, or foreign-currency hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted
transactions. The Company also formally assesses, both at the hedge's inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. When it is determined that a
derivative is not highly effective as a hedge or that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Company discontinues hedge accounting
prospectively.
Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective and that is designated and qualifies as a fair-value hedge, along with the loss
or gain on the hedged asset or liability or unrecognized firm commitment of the hedged item that is attributable to the hedged risk are recorded
in earnings. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective and that is designated and qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are
recorded in other comprehensive income, until earnings are affected by the variability in cash flows of the designated hedged item. Changes in
the fair value of derivatives that are highly effective as hedges and that are designated and qualify as foreign-currency hedges are recorded in
either earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether the hedge transaction is a fair-value hedge or a cash-flow hedge.
However, if a derivative is used as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, its changes in fair value, to the extent effective as a
hedge, are recorded in the cumulative translation adjustments account within other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of
derivative trading instruments are reported in current-period earnings.
The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined that the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting
changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, the derivative is dedesignated as a hedging instrument, because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur, a hedged firm commitment no longer meets
the definition of a firm commitment, or management determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer
appropriate.
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When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective fair-value hedge, the
Company continues to carry the derivative on the balance sheet at its fair value, and no longer adjusts the hedged asset or liability for changes
in fair value. The adjustment of the carrying amount of the hedged asset or liability is accounted for in the same manner as other components of
the carrying amount of that asset or liability. When hedge accounting is discontinued because the hedged item no longer meets the definition of
a firm commitment, the Company continues to carry the derivative on the balance sheet at its fair value, removes any asset or liability that was
recorded pursuant to recognition of the firm commitment from the balance sheet and recognizes any gain or loss in earnings. When hedge
accounting is discontinued because it is probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur, the Company continues to carry the derivative on
the balance sheet at its fair value, and gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive income are recognized immediately in
earnings. In all other situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued, the Company continues to carry the derivative at its fair value on the
balance sheet, and recognizes any changes in its fair value in earnings.

(q) Use of Estimates
Management has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period to prepare these consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.
(r) Reclassifications
Certain amounts in fiscal 1999 and fiscal 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation for fiscal 2001.
(s) Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In August, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets , which addresses
financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This Statement requires that long-lived assets be
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by
the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. SFAS No. 144 requires companies to separately report
discontinued operations and extends that reporting to a component of an entity that either has been disposed of (by sale, abandonment, or in a
distribution to owners) or is classified as held for sale. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value
less costs to sell. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 144 on October 1, 2003.
(5) Trade and Notes Receivable
Trade receivables subject the Company to concentration of credit risk, because they are concentrated in distributors and rental companies

that serve the heavy industrial and construction industries, which are subject to business cycle variations. For the years ended October 2, 1999,
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, approximately 20%, 17% and 15% of revenues were generated from five major customers with
no one customer accounting for more than 10% of net sales. Approximately 17% of the outstanding trade and notes receivable balance as of
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001 were due from these customers, respectively.
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The Company generally offers terms of up to 30 days to its customers and generally obtains a security interest in the underlying machinery
sold. In addition, the Company offers a special financing program primarily to its U.S. customers which provides credit terms of periods up to
one year in exchange for an interest-bearing note.
The Company has agreements with two major international banks to sell up to $75,000 of notes receivable obtained under the special
financing program, subject to certain conditions. The banks purchase the notes receivable at face value on a 90% non-recourse basis. The
agreements provide that the Company purchase credit insurance on behalf of the banks to insure the 90% risk assumed by the banks. The
Company retains 10% of the credit risk on a first loss basis. The Company is responsible for administrative and collection activities. The cost
of administrative and collection activities is immaterial. Cash collections on the notes are deposited directly into an account for the benefit of
the major international banks. Amounts held at September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001 are shown as restricted cash in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. The banks have the power to sell or pledge the notes receivable purchased at any time and the Company has no
rights or obligation to repurchase of the notes receivable.
Notes receivable sold under this arrangement meet the criteria for sale under SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfer and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities , and, accordingly, are removed from the consolidated balance sheet upon transfer. The
Predecessor received proceeds from the sales of the trade accounts receivable of approximately $171,000 and $52,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, respectively.
At September 29, 2001, the Company had credit risk of $2,747 with respect to notes receivable that had been sold under the arrangement.
(6) Inventories
Inventories consist of the following as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001:

Raw materials and supplies
Work in process
Finished goods

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$71,678
41,740
63,547
$176,965

$61,234
44,141
63,076
$168,451

In connection with "fresh-start" reporting, the Company assigned $11,035 of the reorganization value to work in process and finished goods
inventories in excess of their historical carrying value. Such amounts will be charged to costs of goods sold in the first fiscal quarter of 2002.
During the year ended September 30, 2000, management made the decision to reduce the number of aerial work platform models
manufactured. The decision together with further rationalization of U.S. crane products resulted in an inventory write-down of $12,500, which
is included in cost of goods sold. During the year ended September 29, 2001, an additional $7,500 of obsolete inventory was written-off, which
is included in cost of goods sold.
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(7) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001:

Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Equipment held for rent
Furniture and fixtures
Construction in progress

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$5,940
68,880
46,312
55,258
30,562
3,311

$4,429
54,742
28,322
31,047
19,205
365

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

210,263
40,243
$170,020

138,110
-$138,110

Depreciation expense (including depreciation expense on equipment held for rent) for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000
and September 29, 2001 was $26,578, $29,178 and $29,876, respectively.
As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, property, plant and equipment have been adjusted to an estimated fair market
value at September 29, 2001 in connection with "fresh-start" reporting. The Company's allocation of the reorganization value is preliminary.
The Company is in the process of obtaining appraisals of certain of its tangible and intangible assets. Accordingly, adjustments may be
necessary to property, plant and equipment.
(8) Goodwill and Reorganization Value in Excess of Amounts Allocated to Identifiable Assets
Goodwill and reorganization value in excess of amount allocated to identifiable assets consists of the following as of September 30, 2000
and September 29, 2001:

Goodwill
Reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to
identifiable assets
Less accumulated amortization

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$217,270

$--

-14,668
$202,602

36,576
-$36,576

During fiscal 2000, management adopted a plan to reduce the size of its Manlift operations. Under the plan, sales, marketing and production
of 34 Manlift models were discontinued. In connection with the decision to reduce Manlift operations, a goodwill impairment charge of
$53,351 was recognized.
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As more fully described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company's emergence from Chapter 11 resulted in the
application of "fresh-start" reporting. For purposes of "fresh-start" reporting, the reorganization value used in preparing the consolidated
balance sheet was $286 million. The difference between the Company's reorganization value and the fair value of the Company's assets and
liabilities resulted in the recording of a reorganization value in excess of amounts allocable to identifiable assets of $36,576 as of September 29,
2001.
(9) Short-Term Borrowings
The Company's German subsidiary maintains a DM51,000 (approximately $24,000) credit facility with two banks available for discounting
certain accounts receivable. As of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, $20,967 and $14,801 were drawn against this facility. The
interest rate charged on the outstanding borrowings was 7.20% and 7.75% at September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, respectively. This
arrangement does not have a termination date and is reviewed periodically. No material commitment fees are required to be paid on the
undrawn portion of the credit facility.
(10) Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001:

Salaries, wages and benefits
Warranty
Deferred revenue associated with equipment held for
rent, current
Interest
Other

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$15,174
11,818

$18,166
12,346

12,589
9,964
33,506
$83,051

9,001
52
28,837
$68,402

(11) Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001:
Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$211,000
225,000
65,890
65,327
----

$----15,000
125,000
35,800

Less current maturities

567,217
37,000

175,800
15,000

Long-term debt

$530,217

$160,800

Bank credit facility
Senior subordinated notes
Senior discount debentures
Senior debentures
Revolving credit facility
Senior secured credit faciltiy
14% Debentures
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Bank Credit Facility The Predecessor had a bank credit facility, which consisted of a $200,000 term loan facility and a $60,000 revolving credit
facility.
The credit agreement provided that at the Predecessor's option, loans under the bank credit facility would bear interest (a) in the case of
loans in U.S. dollars, at the highest of (x) 1/2 of 1% in excess of the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined in the agreement), (y) 1.0% in
excess of a certificate of deposit rate and (z) the bank's prime rate, plus the applicable margin (as defined in the agreement), or (b) in the case of
all loans, the relevant Eurocurrency Rate (as defined in the agreement) as determined by the Administrative Agent, plus the applicable margin.
At September 30, 2000, borrowings of $35,000 were outstanding under the revolving portion of the bank credit facility, bearing interest based
on LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 3.0% (9.79% at September 30, 2000). The interest rate on borrowings under the Term Loan Facility at
September 30, 2000 was based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 3.5% (10.29% at September 30, 2000). Following amendment of the
bank credit facility to provide the Predecessor with certain financial covenant relief, the applicable margin on Eurocurrency Rate borrowings
was increased to 4% and the applicable margin on all other rate based borrowings was increased to 3%. Amounts outstanding under the bank
credit facility on May 7, 2001 of approximately $224,000, including accrued interest, were discharged in the Plan. (See note 2)
Senior Subordinated Notes The Senior Subordinated Notes accrued interest at a rate of 9 1 / 4 % per annum payable semi-annually on May 1
and November 1 of each year. The Senior Subordinated Notes were general unsecured obligations of Grove Worldwide LLC and its co-issuer,
Grove Capital, Inc. Amounts outstanding under the Senior Subordinated Notes of approximately $236,000, including accrued interest, were
discharged in the Plan. (See note 2)
Senior Discount Debentures The Senior Discount Debentures were issued pursuant to an Indenture dated April 29, 1998 (the "Holdings
Indenture") at a discount from their principal amount. The Senior Discount Debentures were general unsecured obligations of Grove Holdings
LLC and its co-issuer, Grove Holdings Capital, Inc. The Senior Discount Debentures accreted interest at a rate of 11 5 / 8 % per annum,
compounded semi-annually, to an expected aggregate principal amount of $88,000 on 2003. The obligations were discharged in connection
with the Plan. (See note 2)
Senior Debentures The Senior Debentures were issued pursuant to an Indenture dated April 29, 1998 (the "Investors Indenture"). The Senior
Debentures are general unsecured obligations of Grove Investors LLC and its co-issuer, Grove Investors Capital, Inc. The Senior Debentures
accrued interest at a rate of 14 1 / 2 % per annum, payable quarterly on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing
on August 1, 1998. Interest was payable, at the option of the Company, in cash or by issuance of additional Senior Debentures. The obligations
were discharged in connection with the Plan. (See note 2)
Revolving Credit Facility On September 25, 2001 the Company entered into a new three-year revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Credit
Facility"). The maximum borrowings and/or outstanding letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Facility may not exceed the lesser of
$35,000 or an amount determined by a borrowing base formula. The borrowing base formula consists of certain specified percentages of
eligible accounts receivable and inventories. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility are secured by a security interest in, pledge of and
lien on substantially all the Company's North American assets and properties. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility are guaranteed
by Holdings and Investors and certain of the Company's subsidiaries. Borrowings may be used to fund working capital and other general
corporate purposes. The Revolving Credit Facility contains restrictive covenants, including among other things, limitations on dividends,
limitations on the creation of additional liens and indebtedness, limitations on capital expenditures, investments, the sale of assets and
transactions with affiliates. Financial covenants include the maintenance of minimum earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization; maximum leverage; minimum interest coverage; and net worth. The Revolving Credit Facility requires that the Company have
outstanding borrowings of at least $15 million at all times, subject to the borrowing base restrictions. As of September 29, 2001, the Company
had outstanding letters of credit of $3,583 and available additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility of $16,417.
F-19
The Revolving Credit Facility provides that borrowings will bear interest at a rate of 2.5% in excess of the banks base rate, or at the
Company's option, a rate of 3.5% in excess of the reserve adjusted Eurodollar rate for interest periods of one, two, three, six or twelve months.
The Company also pays a 0.5% fee on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility, a letter of credit fee of 3.5% per annum and certain
other fees.
Senior Secured Credit Agreement On September 25, 2001, the Company entered into a new five-year $125,000 term loan facility (the "Term
Loan Facility"). Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility are secured by a security interest in, pledge of and lien on substantially all of the
Company's North American assets and properties. Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility are guaranteed by Holdings and Investors and
certain of the Company's subsidiaries. The Term Loan contains the same restrictive covenants as those included in the Revolving Credit
Facility.
The Term Loan Facility provides that borrowings will bear interest at a rate of 2.5% in excess of the banks base rate, or at the Company's
option, a rate of 3.5% in excess of the reserve adjusted Eurodollar rate for interest periods of one, two, three, six or twelve months. The Term
Loan Facility requires mandatory prepayment with any proceeds from the issuance of any new debt or equity; certain asset sales; and 50% of
excess cash flow, as defined in the agreement.
14% Debentures On September 25, 2001, the Company issued $45,000 of 14% debentures with an estimated fair value of $35,800. The debt
discount of $9,200 will be charged to interest expense using the interest method, through the date of maturity, resulting in an effective rate on
the debentures of approximately 21%. The debentures, which mature on August 15, 2007, are general unsecured obligations of the Company.
The debentures accrue interest at a rate of 14% per annum, payable quarterly on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing on April 1,
2002. Interest payments through April 1, 2005 may be paid with cash of 2% and additional debentures of 12%.
The indenture agreement contains certain covenants that limit, among other things, the ability of the Company to (i) pay dividends, redeem
capital stock or make certain other restricted payment, (ii) incur additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred equity interest, (iii) merge
into or consolidate with certain other entities or sell all or substantially all of its assets, (iv) create liens on assets and (v) enter into certain
transactions with affiliates or related persons.
The debentures are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time. Redemptions prior to October 1, 2003 are
required to be at the aggregate principal amount of the debentures plus accrued and unpaid interest and a premium as defined in the indenture.
Redemptions after October 1, 2003, require a redemption price of 112% of the debenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest. The redemption
price declines to 100% effective October 1, 2006.
Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows: $46,250 in 2004; 31,250 in 2005; $62,500 in 2006 and $45,000 in 2007.
The Company expects that cash flows from foreign operations will be required to meet its domestic debt service requirements. Such cash
flows are expected to be generated from intercompany interest expense on loans the Company has made to certain of its foreign subsidiaries.
The loans have been established with amounts and interest rates to allow for repatriation without restriction or additional tax burden. However,
there is no assurance that the foreign subsidiaries will generate the cash flow required to service the loans or that the laws in the foreign
jurisdictions will not change to limit repatriation or increase the tax burden of repatriation.
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Interest Expense, net Interest expense, net consists of the following for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and
September 29, 2001.
Predecessor

Interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Interest income

1999

2000

2001

$(52,381)
(2,294)
4,563

$(64,108)
(2,350)
6,547

$(45,871)
(1,230)
5,021

$(50,112)

$(59,911)

$(42,080)

The Predecessor stopped accruing interest on all loans outstanding following the May 7, 2001 Chapter 11 filing in accordance with the
United States Bankruptcy Code. The contractual interest on such loans exceeded the amount recorded during the year ended September 29,
2001 by approximately $25,300. As more fully discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, all accrued interest was discharged

upon the Company's emergence from bankruptcy.
Interest paid was $39,254, $48,430 and $26,562 for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001,
respectively.
The Predecessor had an interest rate agreement with a major commercial bank to collar the interest rate on approximately $100,000 of the
Predecessor's floating rate borrowings during the three years ended September 2001. The contract was terminated in July 2001 as a result of the
bankruptcy filing at no cost to the Predecessor.
(12) Other Liabilities
Other liabilities consist of the following as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001:

Accrued liability for defined benefit pension plans
Accrued liability for postretirement benefit plan
Product liability
Other

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$21,453
33,023
22,513
11,854

$33,318
21,962
17,459
5,278

$88,843

$78,017

(13) Restructuring Charges
During fiscal 2000, the Predecessor adopted and executed restructuring plans that resulted in the termination of approximately 470
employees principally in its U.S. operations. During fiscal 2001, the Predecessor terminated approximately 190 employees principally in U.S.
operations. In connection with the terminations, the Predecessor accrued severance costs of $8,757 and $4,963 during fiscal 2000 and fiscal
2001, respectively. As of September 29, 2001, the Company has paid $11,654 and expects to pay the remainder of the amount accrued in fiscal
2002 in accordance with separation agreements.
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(14) Employee Benefit Plans
The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans which cover substantially all of its U.S. employees. Plans covering salaried employees
provide pension benefits that are based on the participant's final average salary and credited service. Plans covering hourly employees provide
benefits based on the participant's career earnings and service with the Company. The Company's funding policy for all plans is to make the
minimum annual contributions required by applicable regulations, plus such additional amounts as the Company may determine to be
appropriate from time to time.
In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company provides certain health care and prescription drug benefits to certain retirees.
Substantially all of the Company's domestic eligible employees may qualify for benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for
the Company. The Company funds benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, while retirees pay monthly premiums. These benefits are subject to
deductibles, co-payment provisions and other limitations.
The following tables provide reconciliations of the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets for the years ended September 30, 2000
and September 29, 2001 and the funded status of the plans as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001.
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Pension Benefits
Predecessor
Company
2000
2001

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest

$58,251
2,949
4,427

$62,003
2,339
4,877

Post-retirement Benefits
Predecessor
Company
2000
2001

$28,013
847
1,572

$21,576
682
1,682

Special termination benefits
Participant contributions
Amendments
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of year

72
-1,452
(3,786)
(1,362)
$62,003

--519
8,520
(3,294)
$74,964

827
644
-(8,557)
(1,770)
$21,576

-731
-(1,205)
(1,504)
$21,962

$52,684
7,896
4,934
-(1,146)
$64,368

$64,368
(6,492)
4,153
-(3,294)
$58,735

$--1,126
644
(1,770)
$--

$--774
731
(1,505)
$--

Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial gain
Unrecognized prior service cost
Net amount recognized

$2,365
(14,670)
1,481
$(10,824)

$(16,229)
--$(16,229)

$(21,576)
(11,447)
-$(33,023)

$(21,962)
--$(21,962)

Amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheets
consists of:
Prepaid pension cost
Accrued benefit liability
Net amount recognized

$-(10,824)
$(10,824)

$630
(16,859)
$(16,229)

$-(33,023)
$(33,023)

$-(21,962)
$(21,962)

8.00%
10.00%
4.25%

7.25%
10.00%
4.25%

8.00%
---

7.25%
---

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Participant contributions
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Weighted average assumptions at balance sheet date:
Discount rates
Rate of return on assets
Rate of compensations increases

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated post retirement benefit obligation for 2000 was 8.25%
decreasing gradually over 18 years to an ultimate trend rate of 5.0%. The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the
accumulated post retirement benefit obligation for 2001 was 9.0% decreasing gradually over 8 years to an ultimate trend rate of 5%. A one
percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost rate for each year would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
by approximately 12% as of September 29, 2001 and the net
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postretirement benefit costs by approximately 19% for the year ended September 29, 2001. A one percentage point decrease in the assumed
health care cost rate for each year would decrease the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately 11% as of September 29,
2001 and the net postretirement benefit costs by approximately 16% for the year ended September 29, 2001.
The components of the net periodic benefits costs for all U.S. defined benefit plans for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000
and September 29, 2001 are summarized below:

Pension
Predecessor

Service cost
Interest cost
Gain on plan curtailment
Special termination benefits
Expected return on plan assets
Net amortization and deferral

Postretirement
Predecessor

1999

2000

2001

1999

2000

2001

$3,239
4,191
(3,308)
1,347
(4,469)
-$1,000

$2,949
4,427
--(5,377)
1,121
$3,120

$2,339
4,877
--(6,291)
(360)
$565

$1,317
1,820
-1,002
--$4,139

$847
1,572
-827
-(443)
$2,803

$682
1,682
---(446)
$1,918

During the year ended October 2, 1999, in an effort to reduce operating costs at its Shady Grove Facility, the Predecessor involuntarily
terminated or offered special one-time early retirement benefits to approximately 220 employees. These actions, together with other voluntary
terminations, resulted in a curtailment gain of $3,308 which was recognized in net periodic pension costs for the year ended October 2, 1999.
Special early retirement benefits resulted in net periodic benefit costs of $2,349 and $827 for the years ended October 2, 1999 and
September 30, 2000, respectively.
The Company also sponsors defined benefit pension plans which cover substantially all of its foreign employees. The following tables
provide reconciliations of the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets for the years ended September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001
and the funded status of the plans as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001.
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Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid
Impact of translation of foreign currency
Benefit obligation at end of year

$49,166
1,097
2,475
(7,450)
(2,179)
(5,587)
$37,522

$37,522
1,045
2,400
(62)
(898)
618
$40,625

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Impact of translation of foreign currency
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$28,043
1,852
2,275
(2,179)
(3,358)
$26,633

$26,633
(5,937)
1,701
(871)
2,639
$24,165

Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Net amount recognized

$(10,889)
260
$(10,629)

$(16,459)
-$(16,459)

Amounts recognized in consolidated statements balance sheets
consists of:
Accrued benefit liability
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Net amount recognized

$(10,889)
260
$(10,629)

$(16,459)
-$(16,459)

Weighted average assumptions at balance sheet date:
Discount rates
Rate of return on assets
Rate of compensation increases

5.00% to 6.50%
6.00%
2.25% to 3.75%

6.00% to 6.50%
7.00%
2.00% to 3.75%

The components of the net periodic pension costs for all foreign defined benefit plans for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30,
2000 and September 29, 2001 are summarized below:
Predecessor

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on assets

1999

2000

2001

$1,759
2,280
(2,182)

$1,040
2,332
(1,735)

$872
2,400
(2,018)

1,626
$3,483

Net amortization and deferral

-$1,637

(25)
$1,229
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Assets of domestic and foreign defined benefit plans consist principally of investments in equity securities, debt securities, and cash
equivalents.
The Company also has a defined contribution plan covering substantially all of its U.S. employees. Eligible employees may contribute a
portion of their base compensation to the plan and their contributions are matched by the Company at rates specified in the Plan documents.
Employer contributions for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001 were approximately $1,708, $1,496
and $1,340, respectively.
(15) Income Taxes
Prior to January 1, 2001, a significant portion of the Predecessor's business was operated as a limited liability company organized under the
laws of Delaware. The limited liability company was treated as a partnership for income tax purposes, therefore, the taxable income was
allocated to the equity holders who were responsible for U.S. income taxes on such taxable income. Accordingly, earnings prior to January 1,
2001 of the Predecessor's U.S. mobile hydraulic crane and aerial work platform business, as well as, earnings from it foreign subsidiaries were
not directly subject to U.S. income taxes.
Prior to January 1, 2001, provisions for income taxes were limited to foreign taxes with respect to earnings of the Predecessor's foreign
subsidiaries and U.S. Federal, state and local income taxes with respect to the earnings of the Predecessor's truck-mounted crane business.
After January 1, 2001, the Predecessor made an election for the limited liability company to be treated as a C-Corporation for U.S. income
tax purposes. Accordingly, earnings after January 1, 2001 are directly subject to U.S. income taxes. Effective with the election, the Predecessor
estimated its net deferred tax assets to be $33,165 for which management concluded a complete valuation allowance was required.
During the period from January 1, 2001 to September 29, 2001, the Predecessor estimated that its deferred tax assets in the U.S. increased
by $5,919 prior to the impacts of the reorganization and "fresh-start" reporting described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
For U. S. income tax purposes, the reorganization qualified as a taxable asset sale between SGPA and the Company. As a result, the
Company's tax basis in its assets is based on their fair market value as of the reorganization date. The extraordinary gain recognized for
financial reporting purposes was excluded from taxable income due to the bankruptcy filing and the associated provisions in the U.S. tax law.
Domestic and foreign income (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary gain and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle were
as follows for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001:
Predecessor

United States
Other countries

1999

2000

2001

$(33,588)
(526)
$(34,114)

$(116,580)
3,554
$(113,026)

$(70,497)
4,780
$(65,717)
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The expense (benefit) for income taxes consisted of the following for the for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and
September 29, 2001:
Predecessor

Current:
United States, state and local
Other countries
Deferred:
United States, state and local
Other countries

1999

2000

2001

$1,110
1,745
2,855

$2,064
4,495
6,559

$(574)
1,161
587

1,702
978
2,680
$5,535

469
(773)
(304)
$6,255

(264)
(63)
(327)
$260

Income taxes of $2,925, $4,086 and $3,477 were paid for the years ended October 2, 1999, September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001,
respectively.
Significant components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows as of September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventory valuation
Accrued expenses
Property, plant and equipment
Other
Total deferred tax asset (liability)

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$141
184
2,944
(3,370)
30
$(71)

$24
(1,339)
1,186
905
95
$871

(16) Leases
The Company and its subsidiaries lease office space, machinery and other equipment under noncancelable operating and capital leases with
varying terms, some of which contain renewal and/or purchase options.
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The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments required under operating and capital leases that have initial or remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year:

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
Thereafter
Future minimum lease payments

Operating

Capital

$2,200
1,707
1,359
387
142
108
$5,903

$1,301
1,274
994
1,013
742
53
5,377

Less portion representing interest
Less current portion of capital lease obligations
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations

660
1,301
$3,416

Rental expense associated with operating leases was approximately $4,977, $5,905 and $5,152 for the years ended October 2, 1999,
September 30, 2000 and September 29, 2001, respectively. It is expected that, in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be
renewed or replaced by leases on other property and equipment.
(17) Derivative Financial Instruments
A summary of the Company's hedging strategies and outstanding derivative instruments are as follows:
(a) Interest Rate Risk
The Company assesses interest rate cash flow risk by monitoring changes in interest rate exposure that may adversely impact expected
future cash flows and by evaluating hedging opportunities. At September 30, 2001, the Company has approximately $140 million of variable
rate borrowings under its bank credit facility.
As of September 29, 2001, the Company is not party to any instruments which hedge the Company's exposure to future changes in variable
interest rates.

(b) Foreign Currency Risk
The Company has foreign operations in the U.K., France, Germany and Australia. Therefore, its earnings, cash flows and financial position
are exposed to foreign currency risk. In addition, the U.S. company regularly purchases mobile hydraulic cranes from its German factory to
meet the demand of its U.S. customers. In order to maintain profit margins the Company will purchase forward currency contracts and options
at date of commitment to hedge Deutsche mark payment obligations. At September 30, 2000, the Predecessor had $15.5 million in outstanding
forward contracts to purchase Deutsche marks with gross unrealized losses of approximately $1.7 million. The contracts settled within 90 days
and were accounted for as hedges under SFAS 133. Of the unrealized losses at September 30, 2000, $992 was included in the determination of
other comprehensive loss for those forward contracts related to forecasted transactions or completed transactions whereby the cranes were still
in inventory at September 30, 2000. The remaining unrealized losses at September 30, 2000, related to hedges of Deutsche Mark payable
obligations, were included in earnings for the period. The amount in other comprehensive loss were realized in earnings upon completion of the
sale of the related inventory.
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At September 29, 2001, the Company's German subsidiary has entered into forward contracts to sell approximately $18,000 of British
pounds, Australian dollars, and U.S. dollars, in the aggregate, which will be received from customers upon the collection of receivables. The
contracts have an unrealized gain of $408 which the Predecessor has included in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
September 29, 2001.
(18) Other Commitments and Contingencies

Legal The Company is involved in various lawsuits and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. These matters
primarily involve claims for damages arising out of the use of the Company's products as well as employment matters and commercial
disputes. Some of these lawsuits include claims for punitive as well as compensatory damages. The Company is insured for product liability
and workers' compensation claims for amounts in excess of established deductibles and accrues for the estimated liability up to the limits of the
deductibles. The Company accrues for all other claims and lawsuits on a case-by-case basis. The Company's estimate of the undiscounted costs
associated with legal and environmental exposures is accrued if, in management's judgment, the likelihood of a loss is probable. The
Company's policy is to also accrue the probable legal costs to be incurred in defending the Company against such claims. The Predecessor has
followed this policy during each of the periods in the three-year period ended September 30, 2001, with respect to all investigations, claims and
litigation. Insurance recoveries for environmental and certain general liability claims are not recognized until realized.
In the opinion of management, while the ultimate results of lawsuits or other proceedings against the Company cannot be predicted with
certainty, the amounts accrued for awards or assessments in connection with these matters are adequate and, accordingly, management believes
that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the Company. As of September 30, 2001, the Company had no
known probable but inestimable exposures that could have a material effect on the Company.
Product liability and workers' compensation Hanson, on behalf of the Predecessor, purchased an insurance policy which effectively
indemnifies the Company against North American product liability and workers' compensation claims arising prior to October 1, 1997 up to an
aggregate loss limit of $85,000. Losses in excess of that amount, if any, are the responsibility of the Company. For product liability claims
arising on or after October 1, 1997, the Company is self-insured for losses up to $2,000 per occurrence, with a $15,000 annual aggregate loss
limit. For workers' compensation claims arising on or after such date, the Company is self-insured for losses up to $250 per occurrence with a
$1,000 annual aggregate loss limit. Losses over the loss limits are covered by umbrella insurance coverage up to $100,000. The Company
accrues a reserve for the estimated amount of claims which will be self-insured. The estimates are provided by a third party actuary based upon
historical trends. The reserve for claims includes estimates of legal and administrative costs to be incurred.
Environmental matters The Company is also involved in lawsuits and administrative proceedings with respect to claims involving the
discharge of hazardous substances into the environment. Certain of these claims assert damages and liability for remedial investigations and
cleanup costs with respect to sites at which the Company has been identified as a potentially responsible party under federal and state
environmental laws and regulations (off-site). Other matters involve sites that the Company currently owns and operates or has previously sold
(on-site). For off-site claims, the Company makes an assessment of the costs involved based on environmental studies, prior experience at
similar sites, and the experience of other named parties. The Company also considers the ability of other parties to share costs, the percentage
of the Company's exposure relative to all other parties, and the effects of inflation on these estimated costs. For on-site matters associated with
properties currently owned, the Company makes an assessment as to whether an investigation and remediation effort is necessary and estimates
other potential costs associated with the site.
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Other The Company provides guarantees of residual value to third party financing companies in support of certain customers' financing
arrangements. These guarantees generally are only exercisable should the Company's customer default on their financing agreements. The
Company does not expect to incur losses under these guarantees. Exercises of these guarantees have not been significant for the periods in the
three years ended September 30, 2001. Aggregate residual value guarantees were approximately $37,000 at September 30, 2001.

(19) Other Information
Information with respect to the Predecessor's and the Company's domestic and foreign operations is as follows:
Predecessor

Net sales:
Generated by domestic operations
Generated by foreign operations
Elimination of intercompany sales

1999

2000

2001

$570,791
319,008
(100,906)
$788,893

$615,156
372,596
(141,802)
$845,950

$439,508
365,759
(87,683)
$717,584

Predecessor
2000

Company
2001

$106,488
63,532
$170,020

$91,797
46,313
$138,110

Property, plant and equipment:
Held by domestic operations
Held by foreign operations
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

September 29,
2001 *

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash restricted as to use
Trade receivables, net
Notes receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to identifiable
assets
Other assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Short-term borrowings
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

March 30,
2002
(Unaudited)

$13,551
388
132,201
12,668
168,451
4,601
331,860
138,110

$11,822
155
107,454
11,966
163,256
1,346
295,999
127,999

36,576
11,292
$517,838

37,256
5,479
$466,733

$15,000
14,801
64,617
68,402
162,820
21,201
160,800
78,017
422,838

$15,000
13,691
51,006
56,402
136,099
18,318
159,687
81,567
395,671

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $1 per share; 10,000,000 shares
authorized, none issued or outstanding
Common stock, par value $1 per share; 10,000,000 shares
authorized, 5,000,000 shares issued and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Unearned stock compensation
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders' equity

*

--

--

5,000
90,000
---95,000
$517,838

5,000
92,800
(4,180)
(17,837)
(4,721)
71,062
$466,733

Amounts have been derived from the Company's audited consolidated balance sheet.
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the three and six months ended March 31, 2001 and March 30, 2002
(unaudited and in thousands)
Three Months Ended
March 31,
March 30,
2001
2002
Predecessor

Net sales
Write-off of amounts assigned to inventory
and
other assets in excess of historical cost
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, engineering, general and
administrative
expenses
Amortization of goodwill
Restructuring charges
Reorganization costs
Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense, net
Other expense, net
Loss before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net loss

Company

Six Months Ended
March 31,
March 30,
2001
2002
Predecessor

Company

$198,807

$133,548

$372,191

$263,269

-172,100
26,707

-110,950
22,598

-321,304
50,887

14,458
220,078
28,733

26,274
1,415
808
1,000
(2,790)
(15,816)
(508)
(19,114)
815
$(19,929)

20,055
-680
-1,863
(4,437)
(675)
(3,249)
-$(3,249)

48,030
2,814
2,439
1,000
(3,396)
(33,867)
(15)
(37,278)
1,415
$(38,693)

38,560
-680
-(10,507)
(7,296)
(34)
(17,837)
-$(17,837)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the three and six months ended March 31, 2001 and March 30, 2002
(unaudited and in thousands)
Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

March 31
2001

March 30,
2002

March 31,
2001

March 30,
2002

Predecessor

Company

Predecessor

Company

Net loss
Recognition of loss on cash flow hedges of
forecasted foreign currency transactions
through charge to earnings
Change in foreign currency translation
adjustment
Comprehensive loss

$(19,929)

$(3,249)

$(38,693)

$(17,837)

(992)

--

--

--

11,203

(3,601)

12,476

(4,721)

$(9,718)

$(6,850)

$(26,217)

$(22,558)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended March 31, 2001 and March 30, 2002
(unaudited and in thousands)
Six Months Ended
March 31,
March 30,
2001
2002
Predecessor

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile to net loss to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of equipment held for rent
Write-off of amounts assigned to inventory and other assets in
excess of historical cost
Amortization of bond discount
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Interest on senior debentures
Accretion of interest on senior discount debentures
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables, net
Notes receivable
Inventories
Trade accounts payable
Other assets and liabilities, net
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Company

$(38,693)

$(17,837)

7,495
2,296

6,863
1,484

--1,023
4,874
3,654

14,458
520
----

15,712
(9,562)
7,832
(7,431)
(7,109)
(19,909)

24,846
702
(5,606)
(12,021)
(9,595)
3,814

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of plant and equipment
Investment in equipment held for rent
Net cash used in investing activities

(5,306)
-(1,447)
(6,753)

(742)
1,633
(3,956)
(3,065)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net short-term borrowings (repayments)
Borrowings (repayments) of long-term debt, net
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(5,539)
18,257
-12,718

(569)
(1,633)
(357)
(2,559)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

204

81

(13,740)
19,070

(1,729)
13,551

$5,330

$11,822

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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GROVE INVESTORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited and in thousands)

(1)

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for interim financial information. Accordingly, these financial statements do not
include all the information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, the unaudited
consolidated financial statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation
of the financial position and results of operations.
Interim results for the six-month period ended March 30, 2002 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for a full
fiscal year. For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended September 29, 2001, included
elsewhere herein.
(2)

Plan of Reorganization and Basis of Presentation

From its inception in 1998 through December 31, 2000, Grove Investors LLC was a limited liability company which owned all the
member's interest of Grove Holdings LLC. Grove Holdings LLC was a single member limited liability company which owned all of the
member's interests of Grove Worldwide LLC. Effective January 1, 2001, Grove Investors LLC ("Grove Investors") was converted from a
limited liability company to a C-corporation.
Prior to filing its petition for protection under United States Bankruptcy Code, Grove Investors changed its name to SGPA, Inc. ("SGPA" or
the "Predecessor"). On May 7, 2001, SGPA filed a pre-negotiated Plan of Reorganization (the "Plan") for SGPA and each of its domestic
subsidiaries pursuant to Chapter 11 of United States Bankruptcy Code with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Middle-district of
Pennsylvania (the "Bankruptcy Court"). The Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan on September 14, 2001 and the Plan was consummated on
September 25, 2001. For reporting purposes, the inception date for the reorganized company was as of the close of business on September 29,
2001.
In connection with the Plan, Grove Investors, Inc. (the "Company") was formed under the laws of the State of Delaware, and in turn formed
a wholly owned subsidiary, Grove Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings"), which in turn formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Grove Worldwide, Inc.
("Worldwide"). On September 25, 2001, Worldwide acquired SGPA, and Grove Holding LLC and Grove Worldwide LLC were merged into
Worldwide. The Company executed, among other things, the following elements of the Plan:
* Holders of amounts outstanding under the Predecessor's bank credit facility of approximately $224,000, including accrued interest, were
issued (i) $125,000 in senior secured notes, (ii) debentures, with a face value of $45,000 and an estimated fair value of $35,800, and (iii) four
million shares of the Company's common stock.
* Holders of approximately $236,000 of the Predecessor's 9.25% senior subordinated notes, including accrued interest, were issued
(i) one million shares of the Company's common stock, (ii) Series A warrants with a seven-year term giving the holder the right to acquire an
aggregate of 277,778 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of approximately $19.20 per share and (iii) Series B warrants
with a seven-year term giving the holder the right to acquire an aggregate of 277,778 shares of the Company's common stock at $24.20 per
share.
* Holders of approximately $70,000 of the Predecessor's 11.625% senior discount debentures, including accrued interest, approximately
$73,000 of 14.5% senior debentures, including accrued interest, and the equity holders of the Predecessor did not receive any consideration
under the Plan and their claims were discharged.
*

Holders of all pre-petition unsecured trade obligations of the Predecessor were paid in full.
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The estimated fair value of the Series A and Series B warrants were approximately $2,000 and $1,800, respectively. Such amounts have
been included in additional paid-in capital in the consolidated balance sheet as of September 29, 2001.
In connection with the Bankruptcy filing, the Predecessor's bank group provided a $35 million Debtor-in-Possession facility for use by the
Predecessor during Bankruptcy which was converted into a Revolving Credit Facility upon emergence from reorganization.
The Plan contemplated that 250,000 shares of the Company's common stock which were distributed to holders of the Predecessor's bank
credit facility will be given to management. In January of 2002, the Company issued 200,000 shares under a restricted stock plan that vests
ratably over five years. The Company intends to issue the remaining 50,000 shares in the third quarter. In addition, the Company has establish a
stock option plan providing for the issuance of up to 263,158 options to management to purchase Investors' common stock at the reorganization
date fair market value. In January 2002, all the stock options were issued to members of management.
The reorganization value of the Company of approximately $286 million, ratified in the bankruptcy proceeding, was determined with the
assistance of a financial advisor. The advisor (i) reviewed certain historical financial information for recent years and interim periods;
(ii) reviewed certain internal financial and operating data, including five-year financial projections, prepared and provided by management;
(iii) met with certain members of senior management to discuss the Company's operations and future prospects; (iv) reviewed publicly
available financial data and considered the market value of public companies which the financial advisor deemed generally comparable to the
operating business of the Company; (v) considered certain economic and industry information relevant to the operating businesses; and
(vi) conducted such other studies, analyses, inquiries, and investigations as they deemed appropriate. Based upon the foregoing, the financial
advisor developed a range of values for the Company. In addition to relying on management's projections, the reorganization valuation analysis
made a number of assumptions including, but not limited to, a successful and timely reorganization of the Company's capital structure.
The consolidated financial statements following the reorganization reflect accounting principles set forth in the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position ("SOP") 90-7, Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy
Code . This statement provides guidance for financial reporting by entities that have filed voluntary petitions for relief under and have
reorganized in accordance with the United States Bankruptcy Code. As such, the Company has adopted "fresh-start" reporting as of
September 29, 2001, in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet because holders of the equity interest in SGPA
immediately before filing and confirmation of the Plan hold less than 50% of the equity interest in Investors and because SGPA's
reorganization value is less than its post-petition liabilities and allowed claims. SGPA's emergence from Chapter 11 proceedings resulted in a
new reporting entity with no retained earnings or accumulated deficit as of September 29, 2001. As discussed further in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Company were restated as of September 29, 2001, in accordance with SOP
90-7. Thus, the Company's consolidated financial statements for periods prior to September 29, 2001 are not comparable to consolidated
financial statements as of or subsequent to September 29, 2001.
The difference between the Company's reorganization value and the fair value of the Company's assets and liabilities resulted in the
recording of a reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to identifiable assets of $36,576 as of September 29, 2001.
The consolidated balance sheet prepared as of September 29, 2001, discussed below, illustrates the effect of the Plan and the impact of
implementing "fresh-start" reporting. The adjustments present the (i) Company's reorganized capital structure, including its new credit
agreement and debentures; (ii) effect of canceling the senior subordinated debentures, senior discount debentures and senior debentures and the
related accrued interest and deferred financing costs; (iii) elimination of the accumulated deficit and comprehensive loss; (iv) write-up of
inventory to approximate fair market value; (v) adjustment of the pension and post-retirement benefit liabilities to reflect fair market value; and
(vi) certain other adjustments to adopt SOP 90-7.
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The Company's allocation of the reorganization value is preliminary. The Company is in the process of obtaining appraisals of certain of its
tangible and intangible assets. Accordingly, adjustments may be necessary to property, plant, and equipment, other assets, deferred taxes and
reorganization value in excess of amounts allocated to identifiable assets once such appraisals are complete.
The effects of the Plan on the Company's consolidated balance sheet, including debt extinguishments, refinancing and fresh-start
adjustments are as follows:
Predecessor
September 29,
2001

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash restricted as to its use
Trade receivables, net
Notes recievable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets

Effect of
Plan of
Reorganization

Fresh
Start
Adjustments

Company
September 29,
2001

$13,551
388
132,201
12,668
157,416

$------

$----11,035

$13,551
388
132,201
12,668
168,451

4,601

--

--

4,601

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill/reorganization value in
excess
of amounts allocated to identifiable
assets
Other assets
Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term
debt
Short-term borrowings
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities
Total current liabilties
Pre-petition debt
Deferred revenue
Long-term debt
Other liabilties
Total liabilities
Stockholder's equity:
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Invested capital
Notes receivable from members
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss)
Total stockholder's equity

320,825
138,110

---

11,035
--

331,860
138,110

200,761
21,479
$681,175

-(12,223)
$(12,223)

(164,185)
2,036
$(151,114)

36,576
11,292
$517,838

$15,000
14,801
64,617

$----

$----

$15,000
14,801
64,617

68,402
162,820
602,964
21,201
-103,642
890,627

--(602,964)
-160,800
-(442,164)

-----(25,625)
(25,625)

68,402
162,820
-21,201
160,800
78,017
422,838

--75,000
(509)
(254,269)

5,000
90,000
-509
334,432

--(75,000)
-(80,163)

5,000
90,000
----

(29,674)
(209,452)
$681,175

-429,941
$(12,223)

29,674
(125,489)
$(151,114)

-95,000
$517,838
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(3)

Inventory
Inventories consist of the following as of September 29, 2001 and March 30, 2002:

September 29,
2001

Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods

$61,234
44,141
63,076
$168,451

March 30,
2002

$44,162
44,001
75,093
$163,256

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, as determined primarily under the first-in, first-out method.
In connection with "fresh-start" reporting, the Company assigned $11,035 of the reorganization value to work in process and finished goods
inventories in excess of their historical carrying value. The Company also assigned $3,423 of the reorganization value to an intangible asset
representing the fair value of its backlog. Such amounts were charged to costs of goods sold during the three months ending December 29,
2001.
(4)

Income Taxes
Prior to January 1, 2001, a significant portion of the Predecessor's business was operated as a limited liability company organized under the

laws of Delaware. The limited liability company was treated as a partnership for income tax purposes, therefore, the taxable income was
allocated to the equity holders who were responsible for U.S. income taxes on such taxable income. Accordingly, earnings prior to January 1,
2001 of the Predecessor's U.S. mobile hydraulic crane and aerial work platform business, as well as earnings from its foreign subsidiaries were
not directly subject to U.S. income taxes.
Prior to January 1, 2001, provisions for income taxes were limited to foreign taxes with respect to earnings of the Predecessor's foreign
subsidiaries and U.S. Federal, state and local income taxes with respect to the earnings of the Predecessor's truck-mounted crane business.
After January 1, 2001, the Predecessor made an election for the limited liability company to be treated as a C-Corporation for U.S. income
tax purposes. Accordingly, earnings after January 1, 2001 are directly subject to U.S. income taxes. Effective with the election, the Predecessor
estimated its net deferred tax assets to be $33,165 for which management concluded a complete valuation allowance was required.
As a new company formed in connection with the Plan, Grove Investors, Inc. has no taxable earnings history. Pursuant to Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109 " Accounting for Income Taxes" , the Company has not recorded the income tax benefit of
operating losses incurred for the six months ended March 30, 2002.
(5)

Derivative Financial Instruments
A summary of the Company's hedging strategies and outstanding derivative instruments are as follows:
(a)

Interest Rate Risk
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The Company assesses interest rate cash flow risk by monitoring changes in interest rate exposure that may adversely impact expected
future cash flows and by evaluating hedging opportunities. At March 30, 2002, the Company has approximately $138 million of variable rate
borrowings under its bank credit facility.
As of March 30, 2002, the Company is not party to any instruments which hedge the Company's exposure to future changes in variable
interest rates.
(b)

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has foreign operations in the U.K., France, Germany and Australia. Therefore, its earnings, cash flows and financial
position are exposed to foreign currency risk. In addition, the U.S. company regularly purchases mobile hydraulic cranes from its German
factory to meet the demand of its U.S. customers. In order to maintain profit margins the Company will purchase forward currency contracts
and options at date of commitment to hedge payment obligations.
At March 30, 2002, the Company's German subsidiary had entered into forward contracts to sell Euros, Japanese Yen and U.S. dollars
with an aggregate notional amount of $17 million. The contracts have an unrealized loss of $11 which the Company has included in the
consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended March 30, 2002.
(6)

Reorganization Value In Excess Of Amounts Allocated To Identifiable Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 142 "Goodwill And Other Intangible Assets" , the $36,576 of reorganization value in excess of amounts
allocated to identifiable assets was not amortized in the three and six month period ended March 30, 2002. The following table reconciles the
previously reported net loss as if the provisions of SFAS No. 142 were in effect during Fiscal 2001:
Three Months Ended

Net loss as reported
Add: Goodwill amortization
Adjusted net loss

Six Months Ended

March 31, 2001

March 30, 2002

March 31, 2001

March 30, 2002

Predecessor

Company

Predecessor

Company

$(19,929)
1,415
$(18,514)

$(3,249)
-$(3,249)

$(38,693)
2,814
$(35,879)

$(17,837)
-$(17,837)
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2001 gives effect to the acquisitions
of Grove and Potain and the related financing transactions as if each transaction occurred on January 1, 2001. The pro forma data are based on
the historical financial statements of Manitowoc for the year ended December 31, 2001, the unaudited financial information of Grove for the

twelve months ended December 29, 2001 and the unaudited financial information of Potain for the period from January 1, 2001 through May 9,
2001 (acquisition date). The historical financial statements of Manitowoc include the results of Potain for the periods subsequent to May 9,
2001.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2002 give effect to the
acquisition of Grove and the related financing transactions and are based on the historical unaudited financial statements of Manitowoc for the
three months ended March 31, 2002 and the historical unaudited financial statements of Grove for the three months ended March 30, 2002. For
the three months ended March 31, 2002 pro forma financial statements we assumed that the acquisition of Grove and the related financing
transactions occurred on January 1, 2001 for the purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of earnings, and
that the acquisition of Grove occurred on March 31, 2002 for the purpose of preparing the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance
sheet.
Potain's pro forma results of operations are presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP for all periods presented.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements should be read in conjunction with the historical financial statements of
Manitowoc, Grove and Potain.
Pro forma adjustments to historical financial information include adjustments that we deem reasonable and appropriate and are factually
supported based on currently available information. These unaudited pro forma financial statements are included for comparative purposes only
and may not be indicative of what actual results would have been had we acquired Grove and Potain on the dates described above. The pro
forma financial statements also do not purport to present our financial results for future periods.
Manitowoc and Grove submitted pre-merger notification and report forms to the Federal Trade Commission and the Antitrust Division of
the United States Department of Justice on March 27, 2002. In April 2002 the Department of Justice made a request for additional information
related to this filing. Manitowoc and Grove have responded to this request. We have an agreement with the Department of Justice that,
following the completion of the Grove acquisition, we will divest of either Manitowoc Boom Trucks or National Crane. The unaudited pro
forma condensed combined financial statements do not reflect the divestiture of Manitowoc Boom Trucks or National Crane as neither of the
businesses are significant subsidiaries and the divestiture of either business would not have a material impact on the unaudited pro forma
statement of earnings or balance sheet in any period presented.
As more fully described in the notes to the Grove historical financial statements included elsewhere in this Current Report on Form 8-K, on
May 7, 2001 SPGA, Inc. (the "Predecessor"), the predecessor to Grove, filed a pre-negotiated plan of reorganization under Chapter 11 of the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code that was confirmed by the court on September 14, 2001 and consummated on September 25, 2001. For financial
accounting purposes, the inception date for the reorganized Grove (the "Successor") was September 29, 2001. The Grove financial statements
reflect accounting principles set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, "Financial
Reporting by Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code." As such, Grove adopted fresh-start reporting as of September 29, 2001
resulting in a revaluation of the company's assets, liabilities and capital structure. Accordingly, while operating results of the Predecessor and
Successor have been combined to create a twelve month calendar period for purposes of the December 31, 2001 unaudited pro forma
presentation, the financial statements of the Successor are not comparable to the Predecessor for any prior periods.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Earnings
(Thousands of Dollars)

Manitowoc
Historical(1)

Net sales
$1,116,580
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
831,768
Engineering, selling and
administrative
expenses
153,879
Amortization expense
12,554
Restructuring costs
-Reorganization costs
--

Year Ended December 31, 2001
Pro Forma
Grove
Potain Pro Forma
Manitowoc
Combined
Pro Forma
Historical(2) Adjustments
and Potain
Historical(7) Adjustments

Pro Forma

$103,598

$--

$1,220,178

$675,032

$--

$1,895,210

80,490

--

912,258

591,728

--

1,503,986

18,941
----

-1,914 (3)
---

172,820
14,468
---

92,677
4,138
3,331
14,507

-(4,138) (8)
---

265,497
14,468
3,331
14,507

Total costs and expenses
Earnings from operations
Interest expense
Other (expense) income,
net

998,201
118,379
(37,478)

99,431
4,167
(328)

1,914
1,099,546
(1,914)
120,632
(8,254) (4) (46,060)

(1,212)

261

(150) (5)

Earnings (loss) before
income taxes
Income taxes

79,689
30,817

4,100
1,459

(10,318)
(3,843) (6)

Earnings (loss) before
extraordinary loss

$48,872

$2,641

$(6,475)

706,381
(31,349)
(26,888)

(4,138)
4,138
6,871 (9)

1,801,789
93,421
(66,077)

(1,101)

(3,904)

25 (10)

(4,980)

73,471
28,433

(62,141)
(340)

11,034
(19,372) (11)

22,364
8,721

$45,038

$(61,801)

$30,406

$13,643

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements.
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

(1)

Manitowoc historical amounts include the results of Potain for the period subsequent to May 9, 2001.

(2) Manitowoc completed its acquisition of Potain on May 9, 2001. The table below sets out the adjustments necessary to convert the Potain historical statements of earnings for the period
from January 1, 2001 to May 9, 2001 (date of acquisition) from French GAAP to U.S. GAAP. Amounts in U.S. dollars for Potain have been translated from euros at the rate of Euro1.00 to
$0.9138, the average daily rate during the period from January 1, 2001 through May 9, 2001.

For The Period From January 1 Through May 9, 2001
Potain French GAAP

U.S. GAAP Adjustments

Potain U.S. GAAP

Net sales
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Engineering, selling and
administrative expenses

$103,215

$383

$103,598

80,122

368

80,490

18,932

9

18,941

Total costs and expenses
Earnings from operations
Interest income (expense)
Other income - net

99,054
4,161
42
261

377
6
(370)
--

99,431
4,167
(328)
261

Earnings (loss) before
taxes
on income
Income taxes

4,464
1,569

(364)
(110)

4,100
1,459

Earnings (loss) before
extraordinary loss

$2,895

$(254)

2,641

(3) To adjust the amortization based upon increase in goodwill in connection with the Potain acquisition for the period from January 1, 2001
through May 9, 2001. The aggregate consideration paid for Potain was $425.2 million, which includes $307.1 million paid in cash, direct
acquisition costs of $4.1 million, assumed liabilities of $138.8 million, the payment of a post-closing adjustment of $3.6 million in

February 2002, and is less cash acquired of $28.4 million. The preliminary estimate of the excess of cost over fair value of the net assets
acquired is $207.3 million. This amount will be allocated to specific intangible assets during the first half of 2002. Goodwill during 2001 is
amortized over 40 years.
(4) To adjust interest expense to reflect the issuance of new debt in connection with the acquisition of Potain and the repayment of existing
Manitowoc debt:
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Instrument

Senior credit facility:
Revolving credit facility. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Term loan A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .
Term loan B. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .
Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Existing Notes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Miscellaneous. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amortization of deferred financing costs. . . . . . . . . . . .

Amount

Interest Rate

For The Year Ended
December 31, 2001

$40,000
175,000
175,000

6.825%
6.825%
7.075%

$2,730
11,944
12,381

390,000
156,118
33,301
-$579,419

Less - Maniitowoc and Potain historical interest expense
Net pro forma adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10.375%
Various

27,055
16,197
1,615
1,193
46,060
(37,806)
$8,254

The revolving credit facility, which provides for maximum borrowings of $125.0 million, has a 0.500% commitment fee on the unused
balance. See Note (5) below.
The above interest amounts reflect the actual interest rates in effect at the time of the Potain acquisition. A 0.125% increase or decrease in the
assumed average interest rate on the senior credit facility and the miscellaneous debt would change the pro forma Manitowoc and Potain
interest expense by approximately $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.
(5)

To adjust the commitment fee from January 1 to May 9, 2001 related to the assumed unused balance of the revolving credit facility.

(6)

To adjust the provision for taxes on income to an effective income tax rate of 38.7%.

(7) The historical financial information of Grove for the twelve months ended December 29, 2001 was derived by adding the unaudited
historical results of operations of Grove for the three months ended December 29, 2001 to the audited financial statements of Grove for the year
ended September 29, 2001 and deducting the unaudited historical results of operations of Grove for the three months ended December 30,
2000.
(8) The adjustment represents the elimination of Grove's historical goodwill amortization. In accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," which we adopted on January 1, 2002, goodwill and indefinite lived
intangible assets associated with our acquisition of Grove will not be amortized.
The purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be allocated first to the
identifiable intangible assets with any remaining excess accounted for as goodwill. No appraisals of assets have been performed and all of the
excess of purchase consideration over the net assets to be acquired is being recorded as goodwill. A subsequent valuation analysis could
potentially change the purchase price allocation to include adjustments to tangible assets and/or identification of definite lived intangible assets
and therefore result in amortization expense.
(9) To adjust interest expense to reflect the issuance of new notes in connection with the acquisition of Grove and the repayment of existing
Grove debt:
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Instrument

Revolving credit facility. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
New notes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Grove short-term borrowings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amortization of deferred financing costs. . . . . .

Amount

Interest Rate

$5,047
175,000
13,043
-$193,090

4.526%
10.500%
7.750%

For The Year Ended
December 31, 2001

$228
18,375
1,011
403
20,017

Less - Grove historical interest expense. . . . . . .
Net pro forma adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(26,888)
$(6,871)

The revolving credit facility, which provides for maximum borrowings of $125 million, has a 0.500% commitment fee on the unused balance.
See Note (10) below.
The above interest rates related to the revolving credit facility and the Grove short-term borrowings are the rates in effect on March 18, 2002,
the date of the signing of the merger agreement. A 0.125% increase or decrease in the assumed average interest rate would change the pro
forma interest expense by less than $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.
(10)

To adjust the commitment fee related to the assumed unused balance of the revolving credit facility.

(11)

To adjust the provision for taxes on income to an effective income tax rate of 39%.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Earnings
(Thousands of Dollars)

Manitowoc
Historical

Net sales
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Engineering, selling and administrative
expenses
Amortization expense
Restructuring costs
Total costs and expenses
Earnings from operations
Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net
Earnings (loss) before taxes on income and
cumulative effect of accounting change(1)
Provision for taxes on income (loss)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2002
Grove
Pro Forma
Historical
Adjustments

Pro Forma

$301,345

$133,548

$--

$434,893

231,360

110,950

--

342,310

44,773
587
3,900

20,055
-680

--- (1)
--

64,828
587
4,580

280,620
20,725
(10,626)
705

131,685
1,863
(4,437)
(675)

--(645) (2)
13 (3)

412,305
22,588
(15,708)
43

10,804
4,214

(3,249)
--

(632)
(1,514) (4)

6,923
2,700

Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect
of accounting change

$6,590

$(3,249)

$882

$4,223

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

(1) Both Manitowoc and Grove have adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets." Under the transitional provisions of SFAS No. 142, we identified our reporting units, performed impairment tests on the net goodwill
and other intangible assets associated with each of the reporting units with the assistance of independent valuation experts, using a valuation
date of January 1, 2002, and determined that a transitional goodwill impairment charge of $51.0 million ($36.8 million net of tax) was required.
Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets associated with Manitowoc's acquisition of Grove will not be amortized. The purchase
consideration paid in excess of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be allocated first to the identifiable intangible
assets with any remaining excess accounted for as goodwill. No appraisals of assets have been performed and all of the excess of purchase
consideration over the net assets to be acquired is being recorded as goodwill. A subsequent valuation analysis could potentially change the
purchase price allocation to include adjustments to tangible assets and/or identification of definite lived intangible assets and therefore result in
amortization expense.
(2) To adjust interest expense to reflect the issuance of new notes in connection with the acquisition of Grove and the repayment of existing
Grove debt:

Instrument

Amount

Revolving credit facility
New notes
Grove short-term borrowings
Amortization of deferred financing costs

$10,810
175,000
13,691
-$199,501

Interest Rate

For The Three Months
Ended March 31, 2002

4.526%
10.500%
7.750%

$122
4,594
265
101
5,082

Less - Grove historical interest expense

4,437

Net pro forma adjustment

$645

The revolving credit facility, which provides for maximum borrowings of $125.0 million, has a 0.500% commitment fee on the unused
balance. See Note (3) below.
The above interest rates related to the revolving credit facility and the Grove short-term borrowings are the rates in effect on March 18,
2002, the date of the signing of the merger agreement. A 0.125% increase or decrease in the assumed average interest rate would change the
pro forma interest expense by less than $0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2002.
(3)

To adjust the commitment fee related to the assumed unused balance of the revolving credit facility.

(4)

To adjust the provision for income taxes to an effective income tax rate of 39%.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet
(Thousands of Dollars)
Manitowoc
Historical
March 31, 2002

Grove
Historical
March 30, 2002

$27,418
171,988
-135,558
27,671
18,616
381,251
460,535

$11,977
107,454
11,966
163,256
-1,346
295,999
--

$(11,977) (1)
----(11,977)
57,752 (2)

$27,418
279,442
11,966
298,814
27,671
19,962
665,273
518,287

-170,559
-73,383
$1,085,728

37,256
127,999
1,050
4,429
$466,733

(37,256) (3)
-(1,050) (3)
4,031 (4)
$11,500

-298,558
-81,843
$1,563,961

$259,552
27,600
31,391
18,092
--336,635

$51,006
15,000
13,691
10,377
160
45,865
136,099

-(15,000) (1)
10,810 (1)
-(160) (3)
-(4,350)

$310,558
27,600
55,892
28,469
-45,865
468,384

444,387
--

159,687
--

(159,687) (1)
175,000 (1)

444,387
175,000

23,479
39,955
507,821

55,618
44,267
259,572

--15,313

79,097
84,222
782,706

367
31,797

5,000
92,800

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings (deficit)
Treasury stock, at cost

(3,462)
342,414
(129,844)

(4,721)
(22,017)
--

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

241,272
$1,085,728

71,062
$466,733

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable - net
Notes receivable
Inventories - net
Deferred income taxes
Other
Total current assets
Intangible assets - net
Reorganization value in excess of identifiable
assets
Property, plant and equipment - net
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current portion of long - term debt
Short-term borrowings
Product warranties
Deferred tax liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non - current liabilities:
Long - term debt, less current portion
Notes offered hereby
Postretirement health and other benefit
obligations
Other non - current liabilities
Total non - current liabilities
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock
Additional paid - in capital

Pro Forma
Adjustments

(5,000) (3)
(92,800) (3)
50,914 (5)
4,721 (3)
22,017 (3)
20,685 (5)
537
$11,500

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements.
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Pro Forma

367
82,711
(3,462)
342,414
(109,159)
312,871
$1,563,961

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

(1)

The pro forma adjustments required to record the financing portion of the transaction are as follows (in thousands):

Payment of Grove current maturities of longterm debt
Payment of Grove long-term borrowings:
14% debentures
Term loan

Proceeds from new notes

$(15,000)

$(45,000)
(114,687)
$(159,687)
$175,000

Proceeds from revolving credit facility

$10,810

Cash and equivalents

$11,977

(2) To record goodwill of $57.8 million in connection with the Grove acquisition. The estimated purchase price of $283.1 million includes the
amount to be paid to Grove stockholders of $71.6 million, the assumption and partial refinancing of Grove debt in the amount of
$188.4 million, plus estimated direct acquisition costs and payment of Grove prepayment penalties of $23.1 million.
The purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be allocated first to the
identifiable intangible assets with any remaining excess accounted for as goodwill. No appraisals of assets have been performed and all of the
excess of purchase consideration over the net assets to be acquired is being preliminarily recorded as goodwill. We plan to conduct a valuation
of all the tangible and intangible assets acquired as a result of the acquisition of Grove subsequent to closing. This valuation analysis could
potentially result in a different purchase price allocation.
In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142. "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," which was adopted by
Manitowoc on January 1, 2002, goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets associated with our acquisition of Grove will not be amortized.
(3) Represents the elimination of Grove historical amounts related to reorganization value in excess of identifiable assets, deferred income
taxes and stockholders' equity. Retained earnings (deficit) for Grove includes $4.2 million of unearned compensation at March 30, 2002, which
will be earned upon consummation of the acquisition.
(4) Reflects new deferred financing costs of $4.0 million for the new notes that will be incurred as a result of the Grove acquisition and related
debt financing. The deferred financing costs will be amortized over the term of the related debt.
(5) To reflect the increase in our common stock outstanding as a result of the acquisition of Grove. Approximately 2.0 million additional
shares of our common stock are assumed to be issued based upon a stock price of $35.48 per share, which was the price at the close of trading
on March 18, 2002, the date of signing of the merger agreement.
According to the merger agreement, the actual number of shares to be issued at the close of the transaction is calculated based on the
average closing sales price for the ten consecutive trading days ending on and including the second day prior to the closing of the transaction
(the "Determination Period"). The following table describes the range of possible Manitowoc share prices and the impact on the pro forma
balance sheet (in thousands except price per share).
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Manitowoc
Average Closing
Share Price During The
Determination Period

$31.20. . . . . . . . . . . . .
$35.48. . . . . . . . . . . . .
$42.21. . . . . . . . . . . . .

Treasury Stock

Additional Paid-in Capital

Goodwill

Number of
Manitowoc
Shares Issued

$23,524
$20,685
$17,384

$48,080
$50,914
$54,204

$57,757
$57,752
$57,741

2,244
1,973
1,658

Based on the formula in the merger agreement, an increase or decrease of $1.00 in the average price of our shares during the Determination
Period from the price used to derive the pro forma financial statements would have the impact of decreasing or increasing the number of our
shares issued in relation to the acquisition by approximately 54,100 and 57,200 shares, respectively, subject to the minimum and maximum
described above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

THE MANITOWOC COMPANY, INC.
(Registrant)

DATE: August 12, 2002

/s/ Carl J. Laurino
Carl J. Laurino
Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial Officer
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Herewith

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 18, 2002, among Grove Investors, Inc., The
Manitowoc Company, Inc. and Giraffe Acquisition, Inc., including the Form of Affiliates
Letter and Form of Stock Registration Rights Agreement attached thereto as Exhibits A and
B, respectively (filed as Exhibit 2 to the Company's Report on Form 8-K dated as of March
18, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.1

First Amendment and Consent to Credit Agreement, dated April 29, 2002 among The
Manitowoc Company, Inc., the lenders party thereto and Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas (f/k/a Bankers Trust Company), as Administrative Agent.

X

4.2

First Amendment and Consent to Credit Agreement, dated July 11, 2002 among The
Manitowoc Company, Inc., the lenders party thereto and Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas (f/k/a Bankers Trust Company), as Administrative Agent.

X

4.3

First Amendment and Consent to Credit Agreement, dated July 31, 2002 among The
Manitowoc Company, Inc., the lenders party thereto and Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas (f/k/a Bankers Trust Company), as Administrative Agent.

X

20

Press Release dated August 8, 2002, regarding the acquisition of Grove Investors, Inc.

X

23

Independent Auditors' Consent

X

5
FIRST AMENDMENT AND CONSENT

FIRST AMENDMENT AND CONSENT (this "Amendment"), dated as of April 29, 2002, among THE MANITOWOC COMPANY, INC., a
Wisconsin corporation (the "Borrower"), the lending institutions from time to time party to the Credit Agreement referred to below (the
"Lenders") and DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS (f/k/a Bankers Trust Company), as Administrative Agent (in such
capacity, the "Administrative Agent"). All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings
provided such terms in the Credit Agreement referred to below.
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent are parties to a Credit Agreement, dated as of May 9, 2001 (as amended,
modified and/or supplemented to, but not including, the date hereof, the "Credit Agreement");
WHEREAS, the Borrower desires to acquire (the "Grove Acquisition"), through Giraffe Acquisition, Inc., a Wholly-Owned Domestic
Subsidiary of the Borrower organized under the laws of Delaware ("Giraffe Merger Sub"), all of the capital stock of Grove Investors, Inc., a
Delaware corporation ("Grove"), by way of a one-step merger of Giraffe Merger Sub with and into Grove, pursuant to, and in accordance with
the terms of, that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 18, 2002, among the Borrower, Giraffe Merger Sub and Grove
(including the schedules and exhibits thereto) (as amended, modified and/or supplemented to the date hereof (and without giving effect to any
subsequent amendment, modification or waiver thereto without the consent of the Administrative Agent, the "Grove Acquisition Agreement");
WHEREAS, the Grove Acquisition, after giving effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date (as defined below), will constitute a
Permitted Acquisition effected in accordance with the requirements of the Credit Agreement as amended by this Amendment (after giving
effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date);
WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested certain amendments and consents to the Credit Agreement in connection with the Grove Acquisition
and the financing thereof as described below; and
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the Lenders wish to grant certain consents to the Credit Agreement and
the parties hereto wish to amend the Credit Agreement, in each case as herein provided;
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed:
I. Amendments and Consents to Credit Agreement .
1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Credit Agreement, the Lenders hereby acknowledge and agree that the
Grove Acquisition may be effected as a Permitted Acquisition under the Credit Agreement (as amended after giving effect to the
First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date) (and will thereupon constitute a "Permitted Acquisition" for all purposes of the
Credit Agreement, except as provided in Section 2 below), so long as:
I. the sole consideration payable in respect of the Grove Acquisition (exclusive of transaction fees and expenses) shall
consist of (I) shares of non-redeemable common stock of the Borrower, par value $.01 per share, with an equity value of
approximately $71,500,000 issued in accordance with the requirements of Section 4.1(a) of the Grove Acquisition
Agreement (the "Grove Equity Issuance"), (II) the assumption (and subsequent refinancing as provided below) of the
Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced (as defined in the Credit Agreement after giving effect to the First Amendment
Acquisition Effective Date) in an aggregate principal amount equal to approximately $199,300,000 and (III) the
assumption of Grove Acquired Indebtedness (as defined in the Credit Agreement after giving effect to the First
Amendment Acquisition Effective Date) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $20,000,000;
II. except for the deviation from the aggregate consideration requirements for Permitted Acquisitions consummated in any
fiscal year of the Borrower as set forth in clause (vi) of Section 8.14(a) of the Credit Agreement, the Grove Acquisition
shall otherwise be effected as a Permitted Acquisition in accordance with all applicable terms of (and meet all applicable
requirements for a Permitted Acquisition under) the Credit Agreement (including, without limitation, Sections 8.12, 8.14
and 9.17 thereof and the delivery of the officer's certificate required by Section 8.14(a)(viii) thereof);
III. the Grove Acquisition shall have been consummated on or prior to September 30, 2002;
IV. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, (x) the Borrower shall have received gross cash proceeds of at least
$175,000,000 from the issuance by it of a like principal amount of New Senior Subordinated Notes (as defined in the
Credit Agreement after giving effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date), the proceeds of which are used
to finance, in part, the repayment of the Grove Indebtedness to be Refinanced, (y) the Grove Equity Issuance shall have
occurred and (z) the Grove Acquisition shall have been consummated in accordance with the terms of the Grove
Acquisition Agreement and this Amendment;
V. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, (x) the total commitments in respect of the Grove Indebtedness To
Be Refinanced shall have been terminated, and all loans and notes with respect thereto shall have been repaid in full
(together with interest thereon), all letters of credit issued thereunder shall have been terminated (or supported by Letters

of Credit issued under the Credit Agreement on terms satisfactory to the Administrative Agent) and all other amounts
(including premiums) owing pursuant to the Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced shall have been repaid in full and all
documents in respect of the Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced and all guarantees and security with respect thereto
shall have been terminated (except as to indemnification and expense reimbursement provisions, which may survive to
the extent provided therein) and be of no further force and effect, and (y) the Administrative Agent shall have received
evidence, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to it, that the Grove Refinancing (as defined in the Credit
Agreement after giving effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date) has occurred;
VI. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, (I) the creditors in respect of the Grove Indebtedness To Be
Refinanced shall have terminated and released all security interests and Liens (if any) on the assets owned by the Grove
Acquired Entities (as defined in the Credit Agreement after giving effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective
Date), (II) the Administrative Agent shall have received such releases of security interests in and Liens on the capital
stock of, and the assets owned by, the Grove Acquired Entities as may have been reasonably requested by the
Administrative Agent, which releases shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent,
and (III) without limiting the foregoing, there shall have been delivered (A) proper termination statements (Form UCC-3
or the appropriate equivalent) for filing under the UCC (or foreign equivalent) of each jurisdiction where a financing
statement (Form UCC-1 or the appropriate equivalent) was filed with respect to the Grove Acquired Entities in
connection with the security interests created with respect to the Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced and the
documentation related thereto, (B) termination or reassignment of any security interest in, or Lien on, any patents,
trademarks, copyrights, or similar interests of the Grove Acquired Entities on which filings have been made, (C)
terminations of all mortgages, leasehold mortgages, deeds of trust and leasehold deeds of trust created with respect to
property of the Grove Acquired Entities, in each case, to secure the obligations in respect of the Grove Indebtedness To
Be Refinanced, all of which shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, and (D)
all collateral owned by the Grove Acquired Entities in the possession of any of the creditors in respect of the Grove
Indebtedness To Be Refinanced or any collateral agent or trustee under any related security document shall have been
returned to the appropriate Grove Acquired Entity (all of which deliveries pursuant to this sentence may be delivered to
the Administrative Agent in escrow pending the occurrence of the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date);
VII. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, (I) all Grove Transaction Documents (as defined in the Credit
Agreement after giving effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date) shall have been duly executed and
delivered by the parties thereto and shall be in full force and effect, (II) there shall have been delivered to the
Administrative Agent true and correct copies of the Grove Transaction Documents, certified as such by an officer of the
Borrower, (III) each of the conditions precedent to the consummation of the Grove Transaction (as defined in the Credit
Agreement after giving effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date) as set forth in the Grove Transaction
Documents shall have been satisfied (and not waived, unless consented to by the Administrative Agent) to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Administrative Agent, (IV) the representations and warranties set forth in the Grove Transaction
Documents shall be true and correct in all material respects, and (V) the Grove Transaction shall have been
consummated in accordance with all applicable laws and the Grove Transaction Documents (without giving effect to any
amendment or modification thereof or waiver with respect thereto, unless consented to by the Administrative Agent);
VIII. on or prior to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, all necessary governmental (domestic and foreign),
shareholder and third party approvals and/or consents in connection with the Grove Transaction and the transactions
contemplated by the Grove Transaction Documents and this Amendment and otherwise referred to therein or herein shall
have been obtained and remain in effect, and all applicable waiting periods shall have expired without any action being
taken by any competent authority which restrains, prevents or imposes, in the judgment of the Administrative Agent,
materially adverse conditions upon the consummation of the Grove Transaction and the other transactions contemplated
by this Amendment;
IX. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, there shall not exist any judgment, order, injunction or other
restraint issued or filed or a hearing seeking injunctive relief or other restraint pending or notified prohibiting or
imposing materially adverse conditions upon the consummation of the Grove Transaction or the other transactions
contemplated by this Amendment;
X. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, after giving effect to the Grove Transaction, nothing shall have
occurred since December 31, 2001 (and neither the Lenders nor the Administrative Agent shall have become aware of
any facts or conditions not previously known) which the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders shall determine
has had, or could reasonably be expected to have, (x) a Material Adverse Effect or (y) a materially adverse effect on (I)
the Grove Transaction or (II) the business, operations, properties, assets, liabilities, condition (financial or otherwise) or
prospects of the Grove Acquired Entities taken as a whole;
XI. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, no actions, suits or proceedings by any entity (private or
governmental) shall be pending or threatened (a) with respect to the Grove Transaction, the Credit Agreement or any
Grove Transaction Document or (b) which the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders shall determine has had, or
could reasonably be expected to have, (x) a Material Adverse Effect or (y) a materially adverse effect on (I) the Grove
Transaction or (II) the business, operations, properties, assets, liabilities, condition (financial or otherwise) or prospects
of the Grove Acquired Entities taken as a whole;

XII. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the Administrative Agent shall have received from each U.S. Grove
Acquired Entity (as defined in the Credit Agreement after giving effect to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective
Date) a certificate, dated the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, signed by the president or any vice president
of such Person, and attested to by the secretary or any assistant secretary of such Person, substantially in the form of
Exhibit H to the Credit Agreement with appropriate insertions, together with copies of the Certificate of Incorporation,
By-Laws, operating agreement or other equivalent organizational documents of such Person and the resolutions of such
Person relating to the Grove Transaction and the other transactions contemplated by this Amendment referred to herein,
and the foregoing shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent;
XIII. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the Administrative Agent shall have received from Foley &
Lardner, special counsel to the Credit Parties, an opinion addressed to the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent
and each of the Lenders and dated the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date in form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, and covering such matters incident to this Amendment and the transactions
contemplated herein as the Administrative Agent may reasonably request (including an opinion as to the perfection of
security interests in the assets of the U.S. Grove Acquired Entities granted pursuant to the Security Documents and a no
conflicts opinion as to the Senior Subordinated Note Documents and the New Senior Subordinated Note Documents);
XIV. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the Borrower shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent a
certificate of the Borrower's chief financial officer demonstrating, in reasonable detail, compliance with the proviso of
Section 4.03 of the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture;
XV. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the Administrative Agent shall have received evidence of insurance
complying with the requirements of Section 8.03 of the Credit Agreement for the business and properties of the
Borrower, the Grove Acquired Entities and their respective Subsidiaries, in scope, form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and naming the Collateral Agent as an additional insured and/or loss payee, and
stating that such insurance shall not be cancelled or materially revised without 30 days prior written notice by the insurer
to the Collateral Agent;
XVI. on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the Borrower and the other Credit Parties (including each U.S.
Grove Acquired Entity) shall have complied with the provisions of Sections 8.14(b) and (c) of the Credit Agreement; and
XVII. the Credit Parties (including each U.S. Grove Acquired Entity) shall have furnished to the Administrative Agent such
updates to the schedules to the Pledge Agreement and the Security Agreement as are necessary to give effect to all
changes to the original such schedules which occurred after the Initial Borrowing Date through and including the First
Amendment Acquisition Effective Date (and after giving effect to the Grove Acquisition).
2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Credit Agreement or in Section 1 of Part I of this Amendment, the
parties hereto hereby acknowledge and agree that the Grove Acquisition shall not constitute a "Permitted Acquisition" for
purposes of (i) the definition of "Permitted Acquisition Basket Amount", (ii) determining compliance with the aggregate
consideration requirements for future Permitted Acquisitions set forth in clause (vi) of Section 8.14(a) of the Credit Agreement,
(iii) Section 9.01(xiv) of the Credit Agreement, (iv) Section 9.04(viii) of the Credit Agreement, (v) the last sentence of Section
9.09 of the Credit Agreement or (vi) the last sentence of Section 9.10 of the Credit Agreement.
3. Section 1.14(a) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "and the New Senior Subordinated Note
Indenture" immediately after the text "in accordance with, the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said Section,
(ii) inserting the text "and the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" immediately after the text "will not violate the
provisions of, the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said Section, (iii) inserting the text "or the New Senior
Subordinated Note Indenture" immediately after the text "4.03 of the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said
Section and (iv) inserting the text "and the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" immediately after the text "set forth in the
Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said Section.
4. Section 1.15(a) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "and the New Senior Subordinated Note
Indenture" immediately after the text "in accordance with, the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said Section,
(ii) inserting the text "and the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" immediately after the text "will not violate the
provisions of, the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said Section, (iii) inserting the text "or the New Senior
Subordinated Note Indenture" immediately after the text "4.03 of the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said
Section and (iv) inserting the text "and the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" immediately after the text "set forth in the
Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in said Section.
5. Section 4.02(d) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "(x)" immediately following the text "(other
than" appearing in said Section and (ii) inserting the text "and (y) Indebtedness for borrowed money evidenced by the New
Senior Subordinated Notes incurred under Section 9.04(v)(y) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $200,000,000"
immediately after the text "Effective Date" appearing in said Section.
6. Section 4.02(f) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the text "50%" appearing in said Section and inserting

the text "the Applicable Excess Cash Flow Percentage" in lieu thereof.
7. Section 4.02(i) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the text "six calendar months" appearing in said Section
and inserting the text "twelve calendar months" in lieu thereof.
8. Section 5.13 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the text "(as in effect prior to the First Amendment
Acquisition Effective Date)" immediately after the text "Sections 7.05(a)" appearing in said Section.
9. Section 7.05(a) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "(I)" immediately after the text "(a)"
appearing in said Section and (ii) inserting the following new clause (II) at the end of said Section:
"(II) (i) (A) The audited consolidated balance sheets of Grove for its fiscal years ended on September 30, 2000 and September
29, 2001 and the related audited consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), predecessor equity
(deficit) and cash flows of Grove for its fiscal years ended on September 30, 2000 and September 31, 2001 and (B) the
unaudited consolidated balance sheet of Grove for its fiscal quarter ended on March 31, 2002 (and, if the Grove Acquisition
shall not have been consummated on or prior to August 15, 2002, its fiscal quarter ended on June 30, 2002) and the related
unaudited consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), predecessor equity (deficit) and cash flows of
Grove for the six-month (and, if applicable, nine-month) period(s) then ended, copies of which have been furnished to the
Lenders prior to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, present fairly in all material respects the consolidated
financial position of Grove at the date of such balance sheets and the consolidated results of operations and cash flows of Grove
for the respective periods covered thereby, subject, in the case of the unaudited financial statements, to normal year-end
adjustments and the absence of footnotes. All of the foregoing financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied, except as otherwise noted therein.
(ii) The pro forma consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower as of March 31, 2002 (or, if the Grove Acquisition shall not
have been consummated on or prior to August 15, 2002, June 30, 2002) (after giving effect to the Grove Transaction and the
financing therefor) and the related pro forma consolidated statements of income, cash flows and shareholders equity of the
Borrower for the twelve-month period ended on March 31, 2002 (or, if the Grove Acquisition shall not have been consummated
on or prior to August 15, 2002, June 30, 2002) (after giving effect to the Grove Transaction and the financing therefor), copies
of which have been furnished to the Lenders prior to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, present fairly in all
material respects the pro forma consolidated financial position of the Borrower as of March 31, 2002 (or June 30, 2002, as the
case may be) and the pro forma consolidated results of the operations of the Borrower for the period covered thereby. All of the
foregoing pro forma financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the historical financial statements of the
Borrower set forth in preceding clause (i).".
10. Section 7.05(b) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "and the First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date" immediately after the text "On and as of the Initial Borrowing Date" appearing in said Section, (ii) inserting the
text "or the Grove Transaction, as the case may be," immediately after the text "giving effect to the Transaction" appearing in
said Section and (iii) deleting the text "and the Senior Subordinated Notes" appearing in said Section and inserting the text ", the
Senior Subordinated Notes and (in the event this representation is to be made on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective
Date) the New Senior Subordinated Notes" in lieu thereof.
11. Section 7.05(c) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the following new sentences at the end thereof:
"Except as fully reflected in the financial statements described in Section 7.05(a)(II), there were as of the First Amendment
Acquisition Effective Date (and after giving effect to Grove Transaction and the relating financing therefor), no liabilities or
obligations with respect to Grove or any of its Subsidiaries of any nature whatsoever (whether absolute, accrued, contingent or
otherwise and whether or not due) which, either individually or in the aggregate, have had, or could reasonably be expected to
have, a material adverse effect on the business, operations, property, assets, liabilities or condition (financial or otherwise) of
Grove and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. As of the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date (and after giving effect to
the Grove Transaction and the financing therefor), the Borrower does not know of any basis for the assertion against it or any of
its Subsidiaries of any liability or obligation of any nature whatsoever that is not fully disclosed in the financial statements
delivered pursuant to Section 7.05(a)(II) or most recently delivered pursuant to Section 8.01 prior to such date which, either
individually or in the aggregate, has had, or could reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect.".
12. Section 7.05 of the Credit Agreement is hereby further amended by deleting clause (e) of said Section in its entirety and
inserting the following new clauses (e) and (f) in lieu thereof:
"(e) After giving effect to the Grove Transaction (but for this purpose assuming that the Grove Transaction and the related
financing had occurred prior to December 31, 2001), since December 31, 2001, there has been no change in the business,
operations, liabilities, assets, property or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries that has
had, or could reasonably be expected to have, either individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect.
(f) The Updated Projections delivered to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders prior to the First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date have been prepared in good faith and are based on reasonable assumptions, and there are no statements or

conclusions in the Updated Projections which are based upon or include information known to the Borrower to be misleading in
any material respect or which fail to take into account material information known to the Borrower as of the First Amendment
Acquisition Effective Date regarding the matters reported therein. On the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the
Borrower believes that the Updated Projections are reasonable and attainable, it being recognized by the Lenders, however, that
projections as to future events are not to be viewed as facts and that the actual results during the period or periods covered by the
Updated Projections may differ from the projected results and such differences may be material.".
13. Section 7.06 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the text "Transaction" appearing in clause (i) of said
Section and inserting the text "Transaction, the Grove Transaction" in lieu thereof.
14. Section 7.08(c) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "(x)" immediately after the text " provided
that" appearing in said Section and (ii) inserting the text "and (y) up to, but not more than, $40,000,000 of Revolving Loans and
Swingline Loans in the aggregate may be used on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date to repay, in part, the Grove
Indebtedness To Be Refinanced and to pay fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Grove Transaction" immediately
after the text "Section 7.08" appearing in said Section.
15. Section 7.12 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the text "Initial Borrowing Date" appearing in said Section
and inserting the text "First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date (immediately after giving effect to the Grove Transaction)"
in lieu thereof.
16. Section 7.14 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting each reference to the text "Initial Borrowing Date"
appearing in said Section and inserting the text "First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date (immediately after giving effect to
the Grove Transaction)" in lieu thereof.
17. Section 7.24 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "(a)" immediately prior to the text "The
subordination" appearing in said Section and (ii) inserting the following new clause (b) at the end of said Section:
"(b) The subordination provisions contained in the New Senior Subordinated Note Documents are enforceable against the
Borrower, the Subsidiary Guarantors and the holders of the New Senior Subordinated Notes, and all Obligations hereunder and
under the other Credit Documents (including without limitation, the Subsidiaries Guaranty) are within the definitions of "Senior
Debt " (or "Guarantor Senior Debt" in the case of the obligations of any Subsidiary Guarantor) and "Designated Senior Debt"
included in such subordination provisions.".
18. Section 7 of the Credit Agreement is hereby further amended by inserting the following new Sections 7.25 and 7.26 after
Section 7.24 appearing in said Section:
"7.25
Grove Transaction . At the time of consummation thereof, each element of the Grove Transaction shall have been
consummated in all material respects in accordance with the terms of the relevant Grove Transaction Documents therefor and all
applicable laws. At the time of consummation thereof, all consents and approvals of, and filings and registrations with, and all
other actions in respect of, all governmental agencies, authorities or instrumentalities required in order to make or consummate
each element of the Grove Transaction in accordance with the terms of the relevant Grove Transaction Documents and all
applicable laws have been obtained, given, filed or taken and are or will be in full force and effect (or effective judicial relief
with respect thereto has been obtained). All applicable waiting periods with respect thereto have or, prior to the time when
required, will have, expired without, in all such cases, any action being taken by any competent authority which restrains,
prevents, or imposes material adverse conditions upon the Grove Transaction. Additionally, there does not exist any judgment,
order or injunction prohibiting or imposing material adverse conditions upon any element of the Grove Transaction, the
occurrence of any Credit Event, or the performance by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries of their respective obligations
under the Grove Transaction Documents and all applicable laws.
7.26 Updated Security Agreement and Pledge Agreement Schedules . The updated schedules to the Pledge Agreement and the
Security Agreement furnished pursuant to Part I, Section 1(xvii) of the First Amendment are true and correct as of the date of
their delivery, and accurately present all information which was originally required to be scheduled pursuant to the Pledge
Agreement and Security Agreement on the Initial Borrowing Date, but modified to reflect any changes which occurred between
the Initial Borrowing Date and such date of delivery.".
19. Section 8.01(g) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the text ", New Senior Subordinated Notes"
immediately after the text "Senior Subordinated Notes" appearing in said Section.
20. Section 8 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the following new Section 8.18 after Section 8.17 appearing
in said Section:
"8.18 Mortgages; Policies; Surveys . Within 60 days following the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the Borrower
shall have delivered to the Collateral Agent, or caused to be delivered to the Collateral Agent:

(i) fully executed counterparts of Mortgages, each in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Agent, which
Mortgages shall cover such of the Real Property owned or leased by the U.S. Grove Acquired Entities as are designated on
Schedule III as " Additional Mortgaged Properties", together with evidence that counterparts of such Mortgages have been
delivered to the title insurance company insuring the Lien of such Mortgages for recording in all places to the extent necessary
or, in the reasonable opinion of the Collateral Agent desirable, to effectively create a valid and enforceable first priority
mortgage lien, subject only to Permitted Liens related thereto, on each such Mortgaged Property in favor of the Collateral Agent
(or such other trustee as may be required or desired under local law) for the benefit of the Secured Creditors;
(ii) Mortgage Policies on each such Mortgaged Property owned by a U.S. Grove Acquired Entity issued by a reputable title
insurer reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Agent and in amounts satisfactory to the Collateral Agent and assuring the
Collateral Agent that each of the Mortgages on such Mortgaged Properties is a valid and enforceable first priority mortgage liens
on the respective Mortgaged Properties, free and clear of all defects and encumbrances except Permitted Liens related thereto,
which Mortgage Policies shall (w) otherwise be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Agent, (x)
include, as appropriate, an endorsement for future advances under this Agreement and the Notes and for any other matter that
the Collateral Agent may in its discretion reasonably request, (y) not include an exception for mechanics' liens or creditors'
rights, and (z) provide for affirmative insurance and such reinsurance (including direct access agreements) as the Collateral
Agent in its discretion may reasonably request; and
(iii) if requested by the Collateral Agent, recent surveys, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Agent,
of each Mortgaged Property owned by a U.S. Grove Acquired Entity and designated as an "Additional Surveyed Property" on
Schedule III hereto.".
21. Section 9.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "(or institutions providing financing to such
customers)" immediately after the text "customers" appearing in clause (xx) of said Section, (ii) deleting the word "and" at the
end of clause (xx) of said Section, (iii) redesignating clause (xxi) of said Section as clause (xxii) of said Section, (iv) deleting the
amount "$2,500,000" appearing in clause (xxii) of said Section (as redesignated pursuant to preceding clause (iii)) and inserting
the amount "$3,500,000" in lieu thereof, (v) inserting the following new clause (xxi) immediately following clause (xx) of said
Section:
"(xxi) Liens on property or assets acquired pursuant to the Grove Acquisition in existence on the First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date which are listed, and the property subject thereto described, in Schedule XIV, but only to the respective date, if
any, set forth in such Schedule XIV for the removal, replacement and termination of any such Liens, plus renewals,
replacements and extensions of such Liens to the extent set forth on such Schedule XIV, provided that (x) the aggregate
principal amount of the Indebtedness, if any, secured by such Liens does not increase from that amount outstanding at the time
of any such renewal, replacement or extension and (y) any such renewal, replacement or extension does not encumber any
additional assets or properties of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries; and",
and (vi) deleting the text "and (xiv)" appearing in the last paragraph of said Section and inserting the text ", (xiv) and (xx)" in
lieu thereof.
22. Section 9.02(xvi) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the amount "$20,000,000" appearing in said Section
and inserting the amount "$40,000,000" in lieu thereof.
23. Section 9.03 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) deleting the word "lesser" appearing in clauses (v) and (vi) of
said Section and inserting the word "least" in lieu thereof and (ii) deleting the text "and (y) that amount permitted under the
Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" appearing in clauses (v) and (vi) of said Section and inserting the text ", (y) that amount
permitted under the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture and (z) that amount permitted under the New Senior Subordinated Note
Indenture" in lieu thereof.
24. Section 9.04 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) deleting the amount "$10,000,000" appearing in clause (iv) of
said Section and inserting the amount "$25,000,000" in lieu thereof, (ii) inserting the text "(x)" immediately after the text
"Subsidiary Guarantors incurred under" appearing in clause (v) of said Section, (iii) inserting the text "and (y) the New Senior
Subordinated Notes and the other New Senior Subordinated Note Documents in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the
New Senior Subordinated Note Issue Amount ( less the amount of repayments of principal thereof after the First Amendment
Acquisition Effective Date), so long as all Net Debt Proceeds from the issuance of New Senior Subordinated Notes in excess of
$200,000,000 are applied as a mandatory repayment and/or commitment reduction in accordance with the requirements of
Sections 4.02(d), (i) and (j)" immediately prior to the semicolon at the end of clause (v) of said Section, (iv) deleting the amount
"$10,000,000" appearing in clause (viii) of said Section and inserting the amount "$20,000,000" in lieu thereof, (v) deleting the
amount "$5,000,000" appearing in clause (xii) of said Section and inserting the amount "$15,000,000" in lieu thereof, (vi)
deleting the amount "$15,000,000" appearing in clause (xiii) of said Section and inserting the amount "$25,000,000" in lieu
thereof, (vii) deleting the text "$25,000,000" appearing in clause (xiv) of said Section and inserting the text "$45,000,000" in
lieu thereof, (viii) deleting the text "and" appearing at the end of clause (xvi) of said Section, (ix) redesignating clause (xvii) of
said Section as clause (xviii), (x) deleting the amount "$10,000,000" appearing in clause (xviii) of said Section (as redesignated
pursuant to preceding clause (ix)) and inserting the amount "$15,000,000" in lieu thereof and (xi) inserting the following new
clause (xvii) immediately following clause (xvi) of said Section:

"(xvii) Indebtedness outstanding on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date and listed in Schedule XV (the "Grove
Acquired Indebtedness") in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $20,000,000, without giving effect to any subsequent
extension, renewal or refinancing thereof except to the extent expressly set forth on Schedule XV; provided that the aggregate
principal amount of the Indebtedness to be extended, renewed or refinanced does not increase from that amount outstanding at
the time of any such extension, renewal or refinancing; and".
25. Section 9.05 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) deleting the amount "$15,000,000" appearing in clause (ii) of
said Section and inserting the amount "$25,000,000" in lieu thereof, (ii) deleting the amount "$40,000,000" appearing in clause
(ix) of said Section and inserting the amount "$60,000,000" in lieu thereof, (iii) deleting the amount "$40,000,000" appearing in
clause (x) of said Section and inserting the amount "$60,000,000" in lieu thereof, and (iv) deleting the amount "$20,000,000"
appearing in clause (xiii) of said Section and inserting the amount "$25,000,000" in lieu thereof.
26. Section 9.07(a) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) deleting the text "set forth below" appearing in subclause (ii)
of said Section and inserting the text "ended after December 31, 2001" in lieu thereof, (ii) deleting the text "in any fiscal year of
the Borrower set forth below the amount set forth opposite such fiscal year below:" appearing in said Section and inserting the
text "$45,000,000 in any such fiscal year." in lieu thereof and (iii) deleting the table appearing in said Section in its entirety.
27. Section 9.08 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the table appearing in said Section in its entirety and
inserting the following new table in lieu thereof:

Fiscal Quarter Ending
March 31, 2002
June 30, 2002
September 30, 2002
December 31, 2002
and thereafter

Ratio
2.50:1.00
2.50:1.00
2.75:1.00.
3.00:1.00

28. Effective as of the First Amendment General Effective Date (as defined below), Section 9.09 of the Credit Agreement is hereby
amended by deleting the amounts "$169,700,000" and "$172,400,000" set forth opposite the dates "June 30, 2002" and
"September 30, 2002", respectively, appearing in the table in said Section and inserting the amount "$158,000,000" in lieu of
each such amount, it being understood, however, that upon the occurrence of the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date,
the amendment set forth in this Section 28 shall be superseded by the amendment set forth in Section 29 below.
29. Effective as of the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, Section 9.09 of the Credit Agreement is hereby further
amended by deleting the table appearing in said Section in its entirety (as modified pursuant to preceding Section 28 hereof) and
inserting the following new table in lieu thereof:

Fiscal Quarter Ending
March 31, 2002
June 30, 2002
September 30, 2002
December 31, 2002
March 31, 2003
June 30, 2003
September 30, 2003
December 31, 2003
March 31, 2004
June 30, 2004
September 30, 2004
December 31, 2004
March 31, 2005
June 30, 2005
September 30, 2005
December 31, 2005
March 31, 2006
June 30, 2006
September 30, 2006

Amount
$178,500,000
$178,500,000
$178,500,000
$190,000,000
$195,000,000
$205,000,000
$210,000,000
$215,000,000
$215,000,000
$215,000,000
$215,000,000
$250,000,000
$250,000,000
$250,000,000
$250,000,000
$260,000,000
$260,000,000
$260,000,000
$260,000,000

December 31, 2006
March 31, 2007

$270,000,000
$270,000,000.

30. Section 9.11 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the table appearing in said Section in its entirety and
inserting the following new table in lieu thereof:

Period
First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date
through and including
December 30, 2002
December 31, 2002
through and including
March 30, 2003
March 31, 2003
through and including
June 29, 2003
June 30, 2003
through and including
December 30, 2003
December 31, 2003
through and including
December 30, 2004
Thereafter

Ratio

3.95:1.00

3.75:1.00
3.50:1.00

3.25:1.00

3.00:1.00

2.85:1.00.

31. Section 9.12 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the table appearing in said Section in its entirety and
inserting the following new table in lieu thereof:

Fiscal Quarter Ending
March 31, 2002
June 30, 2002
September 30, 2002
December 31, 2002
March 31, 2003
and thereafter

Ratio
2.00:1.00
2.00:1.00
2.10:1.00
2.25:1.00
2.50:1.00.

32. Section 9.13(a) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) inserting the text "or any New Senior Subordinated Notes"
immediately after the text "Senior Subordinated Notes" appearing in clause (i) of said Section, (ii) inserting the text "or any New
Senior Subordinated Note Document" immediately after the text "Senior Subordinated Note Document" appearing in clause (ii)
of said Section and (iii) inserting the text ", any Grove Acquisition Document" immediately after the first reference to the text
"Factoring Agreement" appearing in clause (iii) of said Section.
33. Section 9.13(b) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the text "and the other Senior Subordinated Note
Documents" appearing in said Section and inserting the text ", the other Senior Subordinated Note Documents, the New Senior
Subordinated Notes and the other New Senior Subordinated Note Documents" in lieu thereof.
34. Section 9.14 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i) deleting the word "and" at the end of clause (vi) of said Section,
(ii) deleting the text "or (xviii)" appearing in clause (vii) of said Section and inserting the text ", (xviii) or (xxi)" in lieu thereof
and (iii) inserting the following new clause (viii) immediately following clause (vii) of said Section:
"and (viii) the New Senior Subordinated Note Documents".
35. Section 9.18 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the amount "$25,000,000" appearing in said Section and
inserting the amount "$50,000,000" in lieu thereof.
36. The definition of "Change of Control" appearing in Section 11.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the
text "or the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" immediately before the period at the end of said definition.

37. The definition of "Consolidated Indebtedness" appearing in Section 11.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (i)
deleting the text "and Senior Subordinated Notes" appearing in clause (I) of said definition and inserting the text ", Senior
Subordinated Notes and New Senior Subordinated Notes" in lieu thereof and (ii) inserting the text "; provided that in making
any determination of "Consolidated Indebtedness" pursuant to this definition, there shall be excluded therefrom any
Indebtedness of the type described in clause (ii) of the definition of Indebtedness contained herein, in each case to the extent
(and only to the extent) that such Indebtedness (x) is evidenced by letters of credit issued to support performance bonds of the
Borrower or its Subsidiaries (but exclusive of unpaid drawings thereunder) and (y) would otherwise be included in a
determination of Consolidated Indebtedness" immediately before the period at the end of said definition.
38. The definition of "Consolidated Senior Indebtedness" appearing in Section 11.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by
deleting the text "the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Subordinated Notes outstanding at such time" appearing in said
definition and inserting the text "the sum of (x) the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Subordinated Notes outstanding at
such time and (y) the aggregate principal amount of the New Senior Subordinated Notes outstanding at such time" in lieu
thereof.
39. The definition of "Documents" appearing in Section 11.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the text "and
the Senior Subordinated Note Documents" appearing in said definition and inserting the text ", the Senior Subordinated Note
Documents and the Grove Transaction Documents" in lieu thereof.
40. The definition of "L/C Supportable Obligations" appearing in Section 11.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by
inserting the text "or the New Senior Subordinated Notes" immediately after the text "Senior Subordinated Notes" appearing in
said definition.
41. Section 11.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby further amended by inserting in the appropriate alphabetical order the following
new definitions:
"First Amendment" shall mean the First Amendment and Consent to this Agreement, dated as of April 29, 2002.
"First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date" shall have the meaning provided in the First Amendment.
"Applicable Excess Cash Flow Percentage" shall mean, with respect to any Excess Cash Payment Date, 50%; provided that, so
long as no Default or Event of Default is then in existence, if on the last day of the relevant Excess Cash Payment Period, the
Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio for the Test Period ended on such day (as established pursuant to the officer's certificate
delivered (or required to be delivered) pursuant to Section 8.01(e)) is less than 3.00:1.00, then the "Applicable Excess Cash
Flow Percentage" shall instead be 0%.
"Grove" shall mean Grove Investors, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
"Grove Acquired Entities" shall mean Grove and the various subsidiaries of Grove acquired pursuant to the Grove Acquisition.
"Grove Acquired Indebtedness" shall have the meaning provided in Section 9.04(xvii).
"Grove Acquisition" shall have the meaning provided in the First Amendment.
"Grove Acquisition Agreement" shall mean that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 18, 2002, among the
Borrower, Giraffe Merger Sub (as defined in the First Amendment) and Grove (including the schedules and exhibits thereto), as
in effect on April 29, 2002 and (i) at any time prior to the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, without giving effect to
any amendment, modification or waiver thereto, without the consent of the Administrative Agent and (ii) at any time on and
after the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, as the same may be amended, modified and/or supplemented from time
to time thereafter in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.
"Grove Acquisition Documents" shall mean and include the Grove Acquisition Agreement and the other documents and
agreements entered into in connection with the Grove Acquisition, as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented
from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.
"Grove Equity Issuance" shall have the meaning provided in the First Amendment.
"Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced" shall mean all Indebtedness of the Grove Acquired Entities outstanding immediately
prior to the consummation of the Grove Transaction (other than Grove Acquired Indebtedness) and set forth on Schedule XVI.
"Grove Refinancing" shall mean the repayment in full of all of the Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced and the termination of
all commitments in respect thereof.

"Grove Refinancing Documents" shall mean the documents, agreements and instruments entered into in connection with the
Grove Refinancing.
"Grove Transaction" shall mean, collectively, (i) the consummation of the Grove Acquisition, (ii) the issuance of the New
Senior Subordinated Notes, (iii) the consummation of the Grove Equity Issuance, (iv) the consummation of the Grove
Refinancing, (iv) the entering into of the First Amendment and the incurrence of Revolving Loans on the First Amendment
Acquisition Effective Date to repay, in part, the Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced and to pay the fees and expenses in
connection with the foregoing.
"Grove Transaction Documents" shall mean (i) the Grove Acquisition Documents, (ii) the New Senior Subordinated Note
Documents, (iii) the Grove Refinancing Documents, (iv) the First Amendment and (v) the other documents and instruments
entered into in connection with the Grove Transaction, in each case as the same may be amended, modified and/or supplemented
from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.
"New Exchange Senior Subordinated Notes" shall mean senior subordinated notes which are substantially identical securities to
the New Senior Subordinated Notes issued on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, which New Exchange Senior
Subordinated Notes shall be issued pursuant to a registered exchange offer or private exchange offer for the New Senior
Subordinated Notes and pursuant to the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture. In no event will the issuance of any New
Exchange Senior Subordinated Notes increase the aggregate principal amount of New Senior Subordinated Notes then
outstanding or otherwise result in an increase in the interest rate applicable to the New Senior Subordinated Notes.
"New Senior Subordinated Note Issue Amount" shall mean the aggregate principal amount of the New Senior Subordinated
Notes on the date of issuance thereof, which amount shall in no event exceed $250,000,000.
"New Senior Subordinated Notes" shall mean unsecured Indebtedness of the Borrower evidenced by senior subordinated notes
issued on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, which Indebtedness (i) has a final maturity no earlier than the final
maturity of the Senior Subordinated Notes, (ii) has a weighted average life to maturity greater than or equal to the weighted
average life to maturity of the Senior Subordinated Notes, (iii) does not (x) add guarantors or obligors different from those under
(or required under) the Senior Subordinated Notes or (y) provide for security, (iv) contains terms and conditions (including,
without limitation, with respect to amortization, redemption, covenants, defaults, voting rights, remedies and subordination
provisions) identical to (or, from the perspective of the Lenders, more favorable than) than those applicable to the Senior
Subordinated Notes and (v) shall be governed by documentation reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, as such
Indebtedness may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof. As
used herein, the term "New Senior Subordinated Notes" shall include any New Exchange Senior Subordinated Notes issued
pursuant to the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture in exchange for theretofore outstanding New Senior Subordinated
Notes, as contemplated by the definition of New Exchange Senior Subordinated Notes. The issuance of New Senior
Subordinated Notes shall be deemed to be a representation and warranty by the Borrower that all conditions thereto have been
satisfied in all material respects and that same is permitted in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, which representation
and warranty shall be deemed to be a representation and warranty for all purposes hereunder, including, without limitation,
Sections 6 and 10.
"New Senior Subordinated Note Documents" shall mean the New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture, the New Senior
Subordinated Notes and each other agreement, document or instrument executed and delivered in connection with the New
Senior Subordinated Notes, in each case as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in
accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.
"New Senior Subordinated Note Indenture" shall mean any indenture or similar agreement entered into in connection with the
issuance of New Senior Subordinated Notes, as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in
accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.
"Updated Projections" shall have the meaning provided in the First Amendment.
"U.S. Grove Acquired Entities" shall mean each Grove Acquired Entity organized under the laws of the United States or any
State or territory thereof.
42. Section 13.07(a) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the text "the historical financial statements of the
Borrower referred to in Section 7.05(a)" appearing in said Section and inserting the text "the financial statements of the
Borrower delivered pursuant to Section 8.01(a) for the fiscal quarter of the Borrower ended March 31, 2002" in lieu thereof.
43. Section 13 of the Credit Agreement is hereby further amended by inserting the following new Section 13.20 at the end of said
Section:
"13.20 Special Provisions Regarding Pledges of Equity Interests in, and Promissory Notes Owed by, Foreign Persons . The
parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the provisions of the various Security Documents executed and delivered by the

Credit Parties require that, among other things, all promissory notes executed by, and equity interests in, various Persons owned
by the respective Credit Party be pledged, and delivered for pledge, pursuant to the Security Documents. The parties hereto
further acknowledge and agree that each Credit Party shall be required to take all actions under the laws of the jurisdiction in
which such Credit Party is organized to create and perfect all security interests granted pursuant to the various Security
Documents and to take all actions under the laws of the United States (or any state thereof) to perfect the security interests in the
promissory notes issued by, and the equity interests of, any Person organized under the laws of the United States or any state
thereof (in each case, to the extent said promissory notes or equity interests are owned by any Credit Party). Except as provided
in the immediately preceding sentence and as required pursuant to Section 13.19 (by virtue of Part IV of Schedule XIII), to the
extent any Security Document requires or provides for the pledge of promissory notes issued by, or equity interests in, any
Person organized under the laws of a jurisdiction other than the United States or any state thereof, it is acknowledged that, as of
the Initial Borrowing Date, no actions have been required to be taken to perfect, under local law of the jurisdiction of the Person
who issued the respective promissory notes or whose equity interests are pledged, under the Security Documents. The Borrower
hereby agrees that, following any request by the Administrative Agent or Required Lenders to do so, the Borrower shall, and
shall cause its Subsidiaries to, take such actions (including, without limitation, the execution of Additional Security Documents,
the making of any filings and the delivery of appropriate legal opinions) under the local law of any jurisdiction with respect to
which such actions have not already been taken as are reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent or Required Lenders
to be necessary or desirable in order to fully perfect, preserve or protect the security interests granted pursuant to the various
Security Documents under the laws of such jurisdictions. If requested to do so pursuant to this Section 13.20, all such actions
shall be taken in accordance with the provisions of this Section 13.20 and Section 8.12 and within the time periods set forth
therein. All conditions and representations contained in this Agreement and the other Credit Documents shall be deemed
modified to the extent necessary to effect the foregoing and so that same are not violated by reason of the failure to take actions
under local law (but only with respect to promissory notes issued by, and equity interests in, Persons organized under laws of
jurisdictions other than the United States or any state thereof) not required to be taken in accordance with the provisions of this
Section 13.20, provided that to the extent any representation or warranty would not be true because the foregoing actions were
not taken, the respective representation of warranties shall be required to be true and correct in all material respects at such time
as the respective action is required to be taken in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Section 13.20 or pursuant to
Section 8.12.".
44. Each Lender, by its execution and delivery of a counterpart hereof, hereby agrees that, in the event that the Borrower does not
(or cannot) issue, prior to September 15, 2002, New Senior Subordinated Notes generating gross cash proceeds of at least
$175,000,000 for the purpose of financing, in part, the Grove Transaction, such Lender will, upon written request of the
Borrower submitted at any time prior to September 15, 2002, enter into a further amendment to the Credit Agreement identical
in all material respects to this Amendment, except that such amendment shall (i) permit the incurrence of incremental senior
secured bank financing by the Borrower which shall (I) be made available under the Credit Agreement pursuant to one or more
additional tranches of loans and/or an increase to one or more existing Tranches of Loans, (II) be secured and guaranteed
equally and ratably with the Loans under the Credit Agreement, (III) not exceed in an aggregate principal amount an amount
equal to the remainder of (x) $175,000,000 minus (y) the aggregate principal amount of the New Senior Subordinated Notes
issued (or to be issued) to finance the Grove Transaction and (IV) otherwise be made available on such terms and conditions as
determined by the Administrative Agent and reasonably acceptable to the Required Lenders, (ii) permit the New Senior
Subordinated Notes not issued to finance the Grove Transaction ( i.e. , New Senior Subordinated Notes in an aggregate principal
amount equal to the remainder of $250,000,000 less the aggregate principal amount of such incremental senior secured bank
financing) to be issued to refinance outstanding Term Loans under the Credit Agreement (including such incremental senior
secured bank financing) and (iii) provide for modifications to the covenant levels required in Section 9.10 of the Credit
Agreement ( i.e ., the Senior Leverage Ratio) as set forth on Annex A hereto; provided however that the agreements of each
Lender pursuant to this Section 44 do not (and shall not be construed to) constitute an agreement to provide all or any portion of
the incremental senior secured bank financing referred to above.
45. Schedules III and V to the Credit Agreement are hereby amended by deleting same in their entirety and inserting in lieu thereof
the new Schedules III and V, as the case may be, as each appears as attached hereto (with such technical modifications thereto as
are acceptable to the Administrative Agent and as may be required to be made on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective
Date to reflect changes to the Real Property or Subsidiaries, as the case may be, owned or held by the Borrower, the Grove
Acquired Entities and their respective Subsidiaries after the First Amendment General Effective Date and on or prior to the First
Amendment Acquisition Effective Date).
46. The Credit Agreement is hereby further amended by inserting new Schedules XIV, XV and XVI thereto in the form of
Schedules XIV, XV and XVI, respectively, attached hereto.
I. Miscellaneous Provisions .
1. In order to induce the Lenders to enter into this Amendment, the Borrower hereby represents and warrants that:
(a) no Default or Event of Default exists as of (x) the First Amendment General Effective Date, both before and after giving
effect thereto and (y) the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, both before and after giving effect thereto;
(b) all of the representations and warranties contained in the Credit Agreement and in the other Credit Documents are true and
correct in all material respects on the First Amendment General Effective Date and the First Amendment Acquisition Effective

Date, both before and after giving effect to each such date (and, in the case of the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date,
the consummation of the Grove Transaction on such date), with the same effect as though such representations and warranties
had been made on and as of the First Amendment General Effective Date or the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, as
the case may be (it being understood that any representation or warranty made as of a specific date shall be true and correct in all
material respects as of such specific date); and
(c) at the time of the consummation of the Grove Transaction (and immediately after giving effect thereto), the consummation
of same shall not (i) contravene any provision of any material applicable law, statute, rule or regulation or any applicable order,
writ, injunction or decree of any court or governmental instrumentality, (ii) conflict or be inconsistent with or result in any
breach of the terms, covenants, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation or imposition
of (or the obligation to create or impose) any Lien (except pursuant to the Security Documents) upon any of the material
properties or assets of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to the terms of any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust,
credit agreement or loan agreement, or any other material agreement, contract or instrument to which the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries is a party or by which it or any of its material property or assets is bound or to which it may be subject or (iii)
violate any provision of the certificate of incorporation, by-laws, certificate of limited partnership, limited partnership agreement
or any equivalent organizational document of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.
2. This Amendment is limited as specified and shall not constitute a modification, acceptance or waiver of any other provision of
the Credit Agreement or any other Credit Document.
3. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto on separate counterparts,
each of which counterparts when executed and delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and
the same instrument. A complete set of counterparts shall be lodged with the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.
4. THIS AMENDMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.
5. (a) The provisions of Sections 28, 43 and 44 of Part I of this Amendment shall become effective on the date (the "First
Amendment General Effective Date") when each of the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders shall
have signed a counterpart hereof (whether the same or different counterparts) and shall have delivered (including by way of
facsimile transmission) the same to the Administrative Agent at its Notice Office.
(b)
The provisions of Sections 1 through 27, inclusive, Sections 29 through 42, inclusive, and Sections 45 and 46 of Part I of
this Amendment shall become effective on the date (the "First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date") when each of the
following conditions shall have been satisfied:
I. the Lenders shall have received a copy of the detailed consolidated financial projections for the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries, and after giving effect to the Grove Transaction, the related financings therefor and the transactions and
financings contemplated by this Amendment for the five fiscal years ended after the First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date (the "Updated Projections");
II. the Borrower shall have paid to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders all fees, costs and expenses (including,
without limitation, reasonable legal fees and expenses) payable to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders to the extent
then due;
III. the Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate, dated the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date and
signed on behalf of the Borrower by an appropriate officer of the Borrower, stating that all of the conditions in clauses (i)
and (ii), inclusive, above, clauses (i) through (xvii), inclusive, of Section 1 of Part I of this Amendment and Section 6 of
the Credit Agreement have been satisfied on such date; and
IV. the First Amendment General Effective Date shall have occurred.
Unless the Administrative Agent has received actual notice from any Lender that the conditions contained above have not been
met with satisfaction, upon the satisfaction of the conditions described in clauses (iii) and (iv) of the immediately preceding
sentence and upon the Administrative Agent's good faith determination that the other conditions described above have been met,
the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date shall be deemed to have occurred, regardless of any subsequent determination
that one or more of the conditions thereto had not been met (although the occurrence of the First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date shall not release the Borrower from any liability for failure to satisfy one or more of the applicable conditions
specified above). Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Grove Transaction is not consummated on the First
Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date shall be deemed not to have occurred
and Sections 1 through 27, inclusive, Sections 29 through 42, inclusive, and Sections 45 and 46 of Part I of this Amendment
shall be deemed never to have become effective, notwithstanding the satisfaction of the conditions specified in clauses (i)
through (iv), inclusive, of this Section 5.

6. So long as the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date occurs, the Borrower shall pay to each Lender which has executed a
counterpart hereof on or prior to 5:00 P.M. (New York time) on May 8, 2002, a consent fee equal to 1/8 of 1% of the sum of (x)
its Revolving Loan Commitment as in effect on the First Amendment General Effective Date and (y) the aggregate principal
amount of its Term Loans outstanding on the First Amendment General Effective Date. All fees payable pursuant to the
immediately preceding sentence shall be paid to the Administrative Agent within one Business Day after the First Amendment
Acquisition Effective Date, which fees shall be distributed by the Administrative Agent to the relevant Lenders in the amounts
specified in the immediately preceding sentence.
7. From and after the First Amendment General Effective Date and the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, all references
in the Credit Agreement and each of the other Credit Documents to the Credit Agreement shall be deemed to be references to the
Credit Agreement as modified hereby on the First Amendment General Effective Date or the First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date, as the case may be.
***
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly authorized officers to execute and deliver this Amendment as of the date
first above written.
THE MANITOWOC COMPANY, INC.

By
Title:

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS (f/k/a Bankers
Trust Company),
Individually and as Administrative Agent
By
Title:

LANDMARK CDO LIMITED, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

AIMCO CLO 2001-A, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ALLSTATE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

CENTURION CDO II, LTD.

By: American Express Asset Management Group Inc. as Collateral
Manager
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

AMERICAN EXPRESS CERTIFICATE COMPANY,
By: American Express Asset Management Group Inc. as Collateral
Manager
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

KZH CYPRESSTREE-1, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

KZH STERLING LLC, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SEQUILS-CENTURION V,
By: American Express Asset Management Group Inc. as Collateral
Manager
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

NOVA CDO 2001, LTD., as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ARAB BANKING CORPORATION, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ARES III, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:

Title:

ARES IV, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:
ARES V, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ASSOCIATED BANK, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

BANK OF NEW YORK, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

BANK ONE, N.A., as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

BNP PARIBAS, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SIERRA CLO I, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ELT LIMITED, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

JUPITER FUNDING TRUST, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

KZH CNC LLC, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

WINGED FOOT FUNDING TRUST, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

CONTINENTAL CASUALTY, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ROSEMONT, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

MUIRFIELD TRADING, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

OLYMPIC FUNDING 1999-1, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SEQUILS CUMBERLAND, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

DENALI CAPITAL CLO I, LTD. as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

EATON VANCE CDO III, LTD., as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

EATON VANCE CDO IV, LTD., as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

EATON VANCE CDO V, LTD. , as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

GRAYSON & CO
By: Boston Management and Research as Investment Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

EATON VANCE INSTITUTIONAL SENIOR LOAN FUND
By: Eaton Vance Management as Investment Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

OXFORD STRATEGIC INCOME FUND
By: Eaton Vance Management as Investment Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SENIOR INCOME TRUST
By: Eaton Vance Management as Investment Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SENIOR DEBT PORTFOLIO
By: Eaton Vance Management as Investment Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

FIDELITY ADVANCED SERIES II FLOATING RATE, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

FIRSTAR BANK, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

FLAGSHIP CLO 2001-1, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

FLEET BANK, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

FRANKLIN CLO II LTD., as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

FRANKLIN FLOATING RATE MASTER SERIES, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

FRANKLIN FLOATING RATE DAILY ACCESS FUND, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ELC (CAYMAN) 2000-1, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

TRYON CLO, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

GOLDMAN SACHS CREDIT PARTNERS L.P., as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

EMERALD ORCHARD LIMITED, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

RESTORATION FUNDING CLO, LTD.
By: Highland Capital Management, L.P., as Collateral Manager
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SL LOANS I LIMITED,
By: Highland Capital Management, L.P., as Attorney-in-Fact
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

ARCHIMEDES IV, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

NEMEAN CLO, LTD., as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

PRIME RATE TRUST, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

AERIES FINANCE-II LTD.,
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Sub-Managing Agent
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

AIM FLOATING RATE FUND,
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Attorney-in-Fact
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

AVALON CAPITAL LTD.,
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Portfolio Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

AVALON CAPITAL LTD.2,
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Portfolio Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

CHARTER VIEW PORTFOLIO,
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Investment Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

DIVERSIFIED CREDIT PORTFOLIO LTD.,
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Investment Advisor
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

OASIS COLLATERALLIZED HIGH INCOME PORTFOLIO I, as a
Lender
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Subadvisor

By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SEQUILS--LIBERTY, LTD. as a Lender
By: INVESCO Senior Secured Management, Inc. as Collateral Manager
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

LASALLE BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

M&I MARSHALL & ILSLEY BANK, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

MIZUHO CORPORATE BANK LIMITED (DKB), as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

NATEXIS BANQUES POPULAIRES, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

OCTAGON INVESTMENT PARTNERS II, as a Lender

By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

OCTAGON INVESTMENT PARTNERS III, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

OCTAGON IV, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

HARBOURVIEW CDO II, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

HARBOURVIEW CLO IV, a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

OPPENHEIMER SENIOR FLOATING RATE FUND, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SUMITOMO TRUST, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

TORONTO DOMINION (NEW YORK), as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:
CREDIT INDUSTRIEL ET COMMERCIAL, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:

Title:
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

WACHOVIA BANK, N.A. (FIRST UNION), as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:

SWING STREET FUNDING, as a Lender
By:_____________________________
Name:
Title:
MODIFICATION TO COVENANT LEVELS IN
SECTION 9.10 OF THE CREDIT AGREEMENT

Period
First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date
through and including
December 30, 2002
December 31, 2002
through and including
March 30, 2003
March 31, 2003
through and including
June 29, 2003
June 30, 2003
through and including
September 29, 2003
September 30, 2003
through and including
June 29, 2004
June 30, 2004
through and including
June 29, 2005
Thereafter

Ratio

3.10:1.00
2.90:1.00

2.75:1.00

2.65:1.00

2.50:1.00

2.25:1.00

2.00:1.00.

CONSENT AND AGREEMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT
CONSENT AND AGREEMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "Consent"), dated as of July 11, 2002, among THE MANITOWOC
COMPANY, INC., a Wisconsin corporation (the "Borrower"), the lenders (the "Lenders") party to the Credit Agreement referred to below and
DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS (f/k/a Bankers Trust Company), as Administrative Agent (in such capacity, the
"Administrative Agent"). All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings provided such
terms in the Credit Agreement.
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent are parties to a Credit Agreement, dated as of May 9, 2001 (as amended,
modified and/or supplemented to, but not including, the date hereof, the "Credit Agreement");

WHEREAS, the Borrower and the Lenders have heretofore entered into the First Amendment to permit, inter alia , the Grove Acquisition on
the terms and conditions set forth therein;
WHEREAS, Grove has issued 14% Debentures due 2007 in an aggregate principal amount of $45,000,000 pursuant to that certain Indenture,
dated as of October 5, 2001, among Grove and The Bank of New York, as trustee (the "Designated Grove Indebtedness"), which Designated
Grove Indebtedness constitutes "Grove Indebtedness To Be Refinanced" under the First Amendment and the Credit Agreement;
WHEREAS, as part of the Grove Acquisition and certain related transactions, the Borrower has requested certain modifications to the terms of
the First Amendment and the Credit Agreement; and
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions of this Consent, the Lenders wish to permit such modifications and the Borrower and the
Lenders wish to enter into certain agreements, in each case as herein provided;
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed:
I.

Consents and Agreements .

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Credit Agreement or in the First Amendment, the Lenders hereby acknowledge
and agree that (i) (x) the Designated Grove Indebtedness shall not be required to be refinanced pursuant to the Grove Refinancing, (y) the
conditions to the consummation of the Grove Acquisition set forth in clause (v) of Section 1, Part I of the First Amendment shall, to the extent
applicable to the Designated Grove Indebtedness, not be required to be satisfied and (z) the Designated Grove Indebtedness shall be permitted
to remain outstanding without any violation of 9.04, in each case until the 40 th day following the consummation of the Grove Acquisition, so
long as immediately following the consummation of the Grove Acquisition, Grove shall have delivered an irrevocable notice of redemption
with respect to the Designated Grove Indebtedness to the holders thereof pursuant to, and in accordance with the terms of, the indenture
governing the Designated Grove Indebtedness, (ii) the Grove Acquired Entities shall not be required to enter into counterparts of the
Subsidiaries Guaranty, the Pledge Agreement and the Security Agreement (or to comply with the provisions of Section 9.17 of the Credit
Agreement and clauses (xii), (xiii), (xv), (xvi) and (xvii) of Section 1, Part I of the First Amendment) until the earlier to occur of (x) the 40 th
day following the consummation of the Grove Acquisition and (y) the date of the consummation of the refinancing of the Designated Grove
Indebtedness as contemplated by preceding clause (i), so long as (and only so long as) all of the capital stock of Grove (as the surviving
corporation of the merger of Giraffe Merger Sub with and into Grove pursuant to the Grove Acquisition) shall have been pledged to the
Collateral Agent for the benefit of the Secured Creditors pursuant to the Pledge Agreement on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective
Date, (iii) Revolving Loans and Swingline Loans otherwise required to be incurred on the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date to
repay, in part, the Designated Grove Indebtedness as contemplated by Section 7.08(c) of the Credit Agreement shall be incurred on the date of
the consummation of the refinancing of the Designated Grove Indebtedness as contemplated by preceding clause (i) and (iv) the portion of the
proceeds from the issuance of the New Senior Subordinated Notes (if any) otherwise required to be used on the First Amendment Acquisition
Effective Date to refinance, in part, the Designated Grove Indebtedness shall be held in a cash collateral account pledged in favor of the
Collateral Agent to secure the Obligations of the Borrower under the Credit Agreement pursuant to documentation satisfactory to the Collateral
Agent until the refinancing of the Designated Grove Indebtedness and, thereupon, released and applied (prior to the application of Revolving
Loans or Swingline Loans for such purpose) to refinance the Designated Grove Indebtedness.
2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Credit Agreement, the Borrower hereby covenants and agrees that, at all times
prior to the refinancing of the Designated Grove Indebtedness (unless the proceeds of the respective incurrence of Loans are to be utilized to
refinance the Designated Grove Indebtedness and/or pay related premiums), it shall not incur any Loans or request the issuance of any Letter of
Credit if the incurrence of such Loans or the issuance of such Letter of Credit would cause the Total Unutilized Revolving Loan Commitment
at such time (after giving effect to the respective incurrence or issuance) to be less than $40,000,000.
3. The Borrower hereby agrees that the failure to comply with any agreement or covenant contained in this Consent shall constitute an
"Event of Default" for all purposes of the Credit Agreement, entitling the Lenders and the Administrative Agent to take all actions and
remedies described in Section 10 of the Credit Agreement.
II.
1.

Miscellaneous Provisions .
In order to induce the Lenders to enter into this Consent, the Borrower hereby represents and warrants that:
(a) no Default or Event of Default exists as of the Consent Effective Date, immediately before giving effect to this Consent
and immediately after giving effect to this Consent; and
(b) all of the representations and warranties contained in the Credit Agreement or the other Credit Documents are true and
correct in all material respects on the Consent Effective Date both immediately before and immediately after giving effect to this
Consent, with the same effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on and as of the Consent Effective
Date (it being understood that any representation or warranty made as of a specific date shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of such specific date).

2.

This Consent is limited as specified and shall not constitute a modification, acceptance or waiver of any other provision of the Credit

Agreement or any other Credit Document.
3. This Consent may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto on separate counterparts, each of which
counterparts when executed and delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. A
complete set of counterparts shall be lodged with the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.
4. THIS CONSENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.
5. This Consent shall become effective on the date (the "Consent Effective Date") when (i) the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date
shall have occurred and (ii) the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders constituting the Required Lenders shall have signed a
counterpart hereof (whether the same or different counterparts) and shall have delivered (including by way of facsimile transmission) the same
to the Administrative Agent at the Notice Office. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Grove Transaction is not consummated on the
Consent Effective Date, the Consent Effective Date shall be deemed not to have occurred and this Consent shall be deemed never to have
become effective.
6. From and after the Consent Effective Date, all references in the Credit Agreement and each of the other Credit Documents to the Credit
Agreement shall be deemed to be references to the Credit Agreement as modified hereby.
***
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly authorized officers to execute and deliver this Consent as of the date first
above written.
THE MANITOWOC COMPANY, INC., as the Borrower
By:
Name:
Title:

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS,
Individually, and as Administrative Agent
By:
Name:
Title:
BANK ONE, NA, Individually and as Syndication Agent
By:
Title:

FLEET NATIONAL BANK, Individually and as
Documentation Agent
By:
Title:

[NAMES OF ADDITIONAL LENDERS TO BE ADDED]
By:
Title:
CONSENT AND AGREEMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT
CONSENT AND AGREEMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "Consent"), dated as of July 31, 2002, among THE MANITOWOC

COMPANY, INC., a Wisconsin corporation (the "Borrower"), the lenders (the "Lenders") party to the Credit Agreement referred to below and
DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS (f/k/a Bankers Trust Company), as Administrative Agent (in such capacity, the
"Administrative Agent"). All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings provided such
terms in the Credit Agreement.
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent are parties to a Credit Agreement, dated as of May 9, 2001 (as amended,
modified and/or supplemented to, but not including, the date hereof, the "Credit Agreement");
WHEREAS, the Borrower and the Lenders have heretofore entered into the First Amendment and the related Consent to the Credit Agreement,
dated as of July 11, 2002, to permit, inter alia , the Grove Acquisition on the terms and conditions set forth therein;
WHEREAS, as part of the Grove Acquisition and certain related transactions, the Borrower has requested certain modifications to the terms of
the First Amendment and the Credit Agreement;
WHEREAS, in order to obtain clearance for the Grove Acquisition from the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice, the Borrower
has entered into a Consent Decree (the "Consent Decree") which provides that it will divest either Manitowoc Boom Trucks, Inc. (an existing
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of the Borrower) or National Cranes Corporation (an existing Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Grove), each of which
manufactures and markets boom trucks (with the foregoing boom truck entity that is finally designated for divestiture by the Borrower or the
trustee designated in the Consent Decree being herein referred to as the "Designated Subsidiary");
WHEREAS, in order to market the New Senior Subordinated Notes to be issued to refinance, in part, the Grove Indebtedness To Be
Refinanced in connection with the Grove Acquisition, and to avoid any possibility that the divestiture of the Designated Subsidiary could be
deemed a default under the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture, the Borrower seeks approval under the Credit Agreement on the terms set
forth herein (1) to sell the Designated Subsidiary, and (2) at its option, to designate the Designated Subsidiary as an "Unrestricted Subsidiary"
for purposes of the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture, which designation shall require, among other things, that the Designated Subsidiary be
released from the Subsidiaries Guaranty and the Securities Documents to which it is a party;
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions of this Consent, the Lenders wish to permit such modifications and the Borrower and the
Lenders wish to enter into certain agreements, in each case as herein provided;
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed:
I.

Consents and Agreements .

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Credit Agreement or in the First Amendment, the Lenders hereby acknowledge
and agree that promptly upon the Borrower's designation of the Designated Subsidiary as an "Unrestricted Subsidiary" for purposes of the
Senior Subordinated Note Indenture (which designation shall be made by the Borrower in good faith no sooner than 3 Business Days prior to
the date the Borrower believes will be the date of the consummation of the sale of the Designated Subsidiary pursuant to the Consent Decree
and otherwise in accordance with the terms of the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture), the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent, as
applicable, shall (and shall be authorized to) release the Designated Subsidiary from the Subsidiaries Guaranty and the Security Documents to
which it is a party and to take such further actions deemed appropriate by the Collateral Agent to effectuate the release and discharge of the
security interests in the Collateral owned by the Designated Subsidiary created pursuant to the Security Documents (it being understood,
however, that the capital stock of the Designated Subsidiary shall remain subject to the pledge pursuant to the Pledge Agreement in favor of the
Collateral Agent for the benefit of the Secured Creditors, until released in accordance with the terms thereof (whether in connection with the
sale of the Designated Subsidiary pursuant to the Consent Decree or otherwise)); provided that (i) in the event that the Borrower shall
redesignate the Designated Subsidiary as a "Restricted Subsidiary" for purposes of the Senior Subordinated Note Indenture, the Designated
Subsidiary shall comply with all of the requirements of Section 9.17 on the date of such redesignation as if it were a newly-created WhollyOwned Subsidiary of the Borrower on such date and (ii) notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Credit Agreement, (x) at all
times on and after the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date, the Designated Subsidiary shall be deemed not to be a Subsidiary
Guarantor or a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of the Borrower for purposes of Sections 9.02(ix) and (x) and Sections 9.05(ix) and (x) of the Credit
Agreement (even though the Designated Subsidiary may in fact be a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of the Borrower party to the Subsidiaries
Guaranty at such time) and (y) any Investments made by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in Manitowoc Boom Trucks, Inc. or National
Cranes Corporation in reliance on Section 9.05(xiii) of the Credit Agreement shall be permitted only to the extent such Investments are made in
the ordinary course of business (and consistent with the past requirements of, or currently approved budgetary levels for, the respective boomtruck entity) or are otherwise required to be made to ensure compliance by the Borrower with the requirements of Article V of the Consent
Decree (as in effect on the date hereof).
2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Sections 9.02 and 9.05 of the Credit Agreement, the Borrower and any of its
Subsidiaries may sell all of the capital stock of the Designated Subsidiary, or the Designated Subsidiary may sell all or substantially all of its
assets, in either case so long as (i) 100% of the Net Sale Proceeds therefrom are applied solely to repay Term Loans and/or reduce the Total
Revolving Loan Commitment in accordance with the requirements of Sections 4.02(e), (i) and (j) of the Credit Agreement (and are not
reinvested pursuant to the reinvestment option described in the proviso appearing in Section 4.02(e) of the Credit Agreement) and (ii) such sale
is made pursuant to, and in accordance with the requirements of, the Consent Decree.

3. The Borrower hereby agrees that the failure to comply with any agreement or covenant contained in this Consent shall constitute an
"Event of Default" for all purposes of the Credit Agreement, entitling the Lenders and the Administrative Agent to take all actions and
remedies described in Section 10 of the Credit Agreement.
II.
1.

Miscellaneous Provisions .
In order to induce the Lenders to enter into this Consent, the Borrower hereby represents and warrants that:
(a) no Default or Event of Default exists as of the Consent Effective Date, immediately before giving effect to this Consent
and immediately after giving effect to this Consent; and
(b) all of the representations and warranties contained in the Credit Agreement or the other Credit Documents are true and
correct in all material respects on the Consent Effective Date both immediately before and immediately after giving effect to this
Consent, with the same effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on and as of the Consent Effective
Date (it being understood that any representation or warranty made as of a specific date shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of such specific date).

2. This Consent is limited as specified and shall not constitute a modification, acceptance or waiver of any other provision of the Credit
Agreement or any other Credit Document.
3. This Consent may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto on separate counterparts, each of which
counterparts when executed and delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. A
complete set of counterparts shall be lodged with the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.
4. THIS CONSENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.
5. This Consent shall become effective on the date (the "Consent Effective Date") when (i) the First Amendment Acquisition Effective Date
shall have occurred and (ii) the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders constituting the Required Lenders shall have signed a
counterpart hereof (whether the same or different counterparts) and shall have delivered (including by way of facsimile transmission) the same
to the Administrative Agent at the Notice Office. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Grove Transaction is not consummated on the
Consent Effective Date, the Consent Effective Date shall be deemed not to have occurred and this Consent shall be deemed never to have
become effective.
6. From and after the Consent Effective Date, all references in the Credit Agreement and each of the other Credit Documents to the Credit
Agreement shall be deemed to be references to the Credit Agreement as modified hereby.
***
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly authorized officers to execute and deliver this Consent as of the date first
above written.
THE MANITOWOC COMPANY, INC., as the
Borrower
By:
Name:
Title:

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY
AMERICAS,
Individually, and as Administrative Agent
By:
Name:
Title:
BANK ONE, NA, Individually and as Syndication
Agent
By:

Title:

FLEET NATIONAL BANK, Individually and as
Documentation Agent
By:
Title:

[NAMES OF ADDITIONAL LENDERS TO BE
ADDED]
By:
Title:

FAX NEWS RELEASE
For further information:

The Manitowoc Company, Inc.
P.O. Box 66  Manitowoc WI 54221-0066
Telephone: 920-684-4410  Telefax: 920-683-8126
Internet: http://www.manitowoc.com

Carl J. Laurino

Steven C. Khail

Treasurer
& Interim CFO
Direct Dial: 920-683-8136
Email: claurino@manitowoc.com

Director of Investor Relations
& Corporate Communications
Direct Dial: 920-683-8128
Email: skhail@manitowoc.com

NEWS for Immediate Release

THE MANITOWOC COMPANY COMPLETES ACQUISITION
OF GROVE INVESTORS, INC.
Enhances Manitowoc's position as worldwide market leader in cranes
MANITOWOC, WI − August 8, 2002 − The Manitowoc Company, Inc. (NYSE: MTW), the leading worldwide manufacturer of highcapacity lattice-boom crawler cranes and tower cranes, has completed the acquisition of Grove Investors, Inc. The final purchase price was
$271 million, funded by a combination of cash to be paid at a later date, a private offering of senior subordinated notes due 2012, and
Manitowoc common stock.
"We're pleased to officially welcome Grove to the Manitowoc family," said Terry D. Growcock, Manitowoc's president and chief executive
officer. "The acquisition represents a strong growth opportunity for Manitowoc by adding mobile cranes to our product offering. In addition, it
confirms our position as the world's leading provider of lifting equipment for the construction industry and allows us to provide equipment and
lifting solutions for virtually any construction application."
Grove will become part of Manitowoc's Crane segment, adding its line of mobile hydraulic cranes, truck-mounted cranes, and boom trucks to
Manitowoc's existing line of lattice-boom crawler cranes and tower cranes. The combination makes Manitowoc a leader in all three major crane
categories: crawler cranes, tower cranes, and mobile hydraulic cranes.
Carl J. Laurino, treasurer and interim chief financial officer, added: "As we've stated previously, we anticipate that Grove will be neutral to
earnings in 2002 and accretive to earnings in 2003 of $0.20 to $0.30 per diluted share, based on modest revenue increases and multiple
synergies between Manitowoc and Grove. We also expect the transaction to be EVA positive within the next 18 to 24 months. These
projections are not materially affected by the upcoming sale of Manitowoc Boom Trucks, which was announced last week as a condition to
completing the acquisition, per an agreement reached with the U.S. Department of Justice."
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About Grove Worldwide
Grove Worldwide is a leading provider of mobile hydraulic cranes, truck-mounted cranes, and aerial work platforms for the global market. The
company's products are used in a wide variety of applications by commercial and residential building contractors as well as by industrial,
municipal, and military end users. Grove's products are marketed to independent equipment rental companies and directly to end users under
the brand names of Grove Crane, Grove Manlift, and National Crane. Grove products are sold in more than 50 countries.
About The Manitowoc Company
The Manitowoc Company, Inc. is a leading producer of lattice-boom cranes, tower cranes, mobile hydraulic cranes, boom trucks, and related
products for the construction industry. It is also a leading manufacturer of ice-cube machines, ice/beverage dispensers, and commercial
refrigeration equipment for the foodservice industry, and is the leading provider of ship repair, conversion, and new-construction services for
the Great Lakes maritime industry.
Forward-Looking Statements
Any statements contained herein that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and involve risks and
uncertainties. Potential factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such statements. These statements and potential factors include, but are not
limited to, those relating to:
 Manitowoc's anticipated revenue gains, margin improvements, and cost savings,
 new crane product introductions,
 foreign currency fluctuations,
 the risks associated with growth,
 geographic factors and political and economic risks,
 added financial leverage resulting from the Grove acquisition,
 actions of Manitowoc and Grove competitors,
 changes in economic or industry conditions generally or in the markets served by Manitowoc and Grove companies, and
 the ability to complete and appropriately integrate the Grove acquisition as well as other acquisitions, strategic alliances, and joint ventures.

Information on the potential factors that could affect the company's actual results of operations is included in its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including but not
limited to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Company contact:
Carl J. Laurino
Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial Officer
920-683-8136

Independent Auditors' Consent

The Board of Directors
Grove Investors, Inc.:
We consent to the use of our report dated December 12, 2001, with respect to the consolidated balance sheet of Grove Investors, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of September 29, 2001 and the consolidated balance sheet of SGPA. Inc. (formerly Grove Investors LLC) and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2000 and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), predecessor equity (deficit) and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 29, 2001, included herein.
As stated in the report of KPMG LLP, effective September 29, 2001 Grove Investors, Inc. accounted for a change in ownership through "freshstart" reporting. As a result, the consolidated information prior to September 29, 2001 is presented on a different cost basis that that as of
September 29, 2001 and, therefore, not comparable.
/s/ KPMG LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
August 6, 2002
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